








 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

MARCH 21, 2011 

1



 
STUDENT FEES PUBLIC HEARING SCRIPT 

 
by Duncan A. Young, Young & White Law Offices 

 
Monday, March 21, 2011  

6:25 pm 
Don Stroh Administration Center 

 
(NOTE: The Act requires that the public hearing be held at a special or regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of 
Education and, therefore, you should open the special meeting and state that the purpose of the special meeting is to 
hold the public hearing on the Student Fees Policy.) 
 
I. Good evening and welcome to the special meeting of the Millard Public Schools’ Board of Education.   
 

Section 79-2,132 of the Public Elementary and Secondary Student Fee Authorization Act requires that 
annually each school board hold a public hearing at a regular or special meeting for the purpose of 
addressing the proposed Student Fees Policy.   

 
Prior to holding the public hearing the Act requires the Board of Education to review the amount of money 
collected from the students and the use of waivers pursuant to the Student Fees Policy for the prior year.  

 
I would like to introduce the Board members who are present and will participate in this public hearing.  
They are: 

 
   ______________________________ ______________________________ 
  ______________________________ ______________________________ 
  ______________________________ ______________________________ 
 

As I understand, the Superintendent and the District’s administration are recommending this Policy and the 
accompanying Rule for adoption and are available to answer questions from the Board members.  I also 
understand that the administration is not going to make a presentation as such.   

 
In order to allow everyone a chance to address the Board on the Student Fees Policy and accompanying 
Rule, I would like to ask each of you to limit your comments to five minutes or so.  If there is a group of 
people who collectively would like to address the Board on this issue it might be helpful if you would 
select one, two or three individuals to speak on behalf of the entire group.  Of course, we will allow each 
of you who wish to address the Board on this subject to do so at this time.  

 
The official Board action on the Policy and accompanying Rule will be acted on during the regular meeting 
which is scheduled to follow immediately after this public hearing. 

 
I have received (numerous) (________) requests to address the Board and I will attempt to call you in the 
order in which the requests were turned in prior to the opening of this public hearing.  After everyone has 
had an opportunity to address the Board on this issue, I will close the public hearing and adjourn the 
special meeting.  The first speaker that has requested an opportunity to address the Board is 
__________________ (continue calling the individuals until you have gone through all of them). 

 
Thank you very much for your participation in this public hearing.  You have offered valuable information 
and insight to all of the Board members as well as to the Superintendent and his administrative staff.  If 
there is no other person wishing to address the Board I will now close the public hearing.  

 
I will now entertain a motion to adjourn the special meeting of the Millard Board of Education.     

 MEETING ADJOURNED 

2



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 
 
BOARD MEETING                   STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
6:30 P.M.                                  5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 
                                                      MARCH 21, 2011 
 
6:25 p.m. Public Hearing on Rule 6750.1 – Student Fees 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 

E. Routine Matters 
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – March 7, 2011 
2. *Approval of Special Board of Education Minutes – March 14, 2011 
3. *Approval of Bills 
4. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 
5. Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting –  March 14, 2011 

 
F. Information Items 

1. Showcase:  All State Middle School Musicians, Visual Arts (6-12), UNO Honor Choir, and Kiewit Middle 
School 2010 Finance Challenge 

2. Superintendent’s Comments 
3. Board Comments/Announcements 
4. Report from Student Representatives 

 
G. Unfinished Business: 

1.  Approval of Policy 10001 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Mini-Magnets 
 

H. New Business 
1. Accept Resignation of Board Member 
2. Approval of Rule 10001.1 – Site Based Planning and Management – Mini-Magnet Development Process 
3. Delete Rule 10001.2 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Center Development – A Plan for Low 

Enrollment Buildings 
4. *Reaffirm Policy 5800 – Pupil Services – District Computers, Software, and Data Files 
5. Approval of Rule 5800.1 – Pupil Services – District Computers – Software, and Data Files: Compliance with 

Applicable Law and Use of District Computers  
6. *Reaffirm Rule 5800.2 – Pupil Services – District Computers, Software, and Data Files: Right of Access 
7. *Reaffirm Rule 5800.3 – Pupil Services – District Computers, Software, and Data Files: Access to Student 

Records 
8. *Reaffirm Policy 5470 – Pupil Services – Police Questioning and Apprehension 
9. *Reaffirm Rule 5470.1 – Pupil Services – Procedures for Law Enforcement Questioning and Apprehension of 

Students 
10. Approval of Rule 6750.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Student Fees 
11. Approval of Project Lead The Way (PLTW) Agreement 
12. Award Contract for Cather  Re-Roofing Project 
13. Award Contract for Millard South High School Re-Roofing Project 
14. Award Contract for Disney Soffit and Fascia Replacement Project 
15. Award Contract for Black Elk Flooring Project 

3



 

 

Board Agenda 
March 21, 2011 
Page 2 
 

16. Award Contract for Norris Flooring Project 
17. Award Contract for Ezra Millard Fabric Removal Project 
18. Award Contract for Millard North High School Roofing Project 
19. Administrators for Hire 
20. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignations and New Hires 
21. Discussion Regarding Deployment of Security Personnel or Devices and Negotiation (Executive Session) 

 
I. Reports 

1. Legislative Update 
 
J.   Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar.   

1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 4, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 18, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

3. Annual Retiree Luncheon on Friday, April 29, 2011 at 12:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 
South 147th Street 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 2, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

5. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 6, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest Center 
6. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
7. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at Georgetown Club 
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
9. 2011 Graduation on Saturday, May 28, 2011 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 1 

p.m., and Millard West at 4 p.m. 
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147th Street 
11. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 13, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
12. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
13. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 11, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147th Street 
 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request 
form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.  Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may 
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

4



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  
BOARD MEETING             STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
6:30 P.M.                               5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
                                                                                MARCH 21, 2011 
6:25 P.M. Public Hearing on Rule 6750.1 – Student Fees 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 
A. Call to Order 
 
 The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Please 

make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting. 
 
*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – March 7, 2011 (See 

enclosure.) 
 
*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Special Board of Education Minutes – March 14, 

2011 (See enclosure.) 
 
*E.3. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See enclosures.) 
 
*E.4.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.  (See enclosure.) 
 
E.5.  Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – March 14, 2011 
 
F.1.  Showcase:  All State Middle School Musicians, Nebraska State Visual Arts (6-12), UNO Honor Choir, and Kiewit Middle 

 School 2010 Finance Challenge 
 
F.2.  Superintendent’s Comments 
 
F.3.  Board Comments/Announcements 
 
F.4.  Report from Student Representatives 
 
G.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Policy 10001 – Site-Based Planning and 

Management – Mini-Magnets (See enclosure.) 
 
H.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to accept the resignation from Julie Kannas, Board of 

Education member, effective immediately. 
 
H.2.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 10001.1 – Site-Based Planning and 

Management – Mini-Magnet Development Process (See enclosure.) 
 
H.3. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to delete Rule 10001.2 – Site-Based Planning and 

Management – Center Development – A Plan for Low Enrollment Buildings (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.4. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 5800 – Pupil Services – District 

Computers, Software, and Data Files (See enclosure.) 
 
H.5. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 5800.1 – Pupil Services – District 

Computers, Software, and Data Files: Compliance with Applicable Law and Use of District Computers (See enclosure.) 
 
 

5



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 
March 21, 2011 
Page 2 
 
 
*H.6. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 5800.2 – Pupil Services – District 

Computers, Software, and Data Files: Right of Access (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.7. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 5800.3 – Pupil Services – District 

Computers, Software, and Data Files: Access to Student Records (See enclosure.) 
  
*H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 5470 – Pupil Services – Police 

Questioning and Apprehension (See enclosure.) 
 
*H.9. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 5470.1 – Pupil Services – Procedures for 

Law Enforcement Questioning and Apprehension of Students (See enclosure.)  
 
H.10. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 6750.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Student Fees (See enclosure.) 
 
H.11. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the Project Lead The Way (PLTW) Agreement 

be approved and that the Associate Superintendent for Educational Services be authorized and directed to execute any and 
all documents related to this project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.12. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Cather Elementary 

Reroofing Project Phase II of II be awarded to Prairie Construction in the amount of $319,000 (with such amount including 
the base bid and both alternates) and that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed 
to execute any and all documents related to such project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.13. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Millard South High School 

Reroofing Project Phase II be awarded to McKinnis Roofing and Sheet Metal, Inc. in the amount of $341,433 and that the 
associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to 
such project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.14. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Disney Soffit and Fascia 

Replacement Project be awarded to Rife Construction in the amount of $46,585 and that the associate superintendent for 
general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.15. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Black Elk Flooring Project 

be awarded to Floors, Inc. in the amount of $114,289 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such 
project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.16. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Norris Flooring Project be 

awarded to Floors, Inc. in the amount of $84,132 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such 
project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.17. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Ezra Fabric Removal 

Project be awarded to Rife Construction in the amount of $42,998 and that the associate superintendent for general 
administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.18. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Millard North High School 

Reroofing Project be awarded to R. L. Craft of Omaha in the amount of $210,000 and that the associate superintendent for 
general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project (See enclosure.) 

 
H.19. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve administrators for hire:  Ryan Saunders, 

Principal at Cody Elementary and Dawn Marten, Principal at Harvey Oaks Elementary (See enclosures) 
 
 

6



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 
March 21, 2011 
Page 3 
 
 
H.20. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions:  Resignations and New 

Hires (See enclosures.) 
 
H.21. Discussion Regarding Deployment of Security Personnel or Devices and Negotiation (Executive Session) 
 
I.  Reports: 

1. Legislative Update 
 

J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 
1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 4, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147th Street 
2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 18, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147th Street 
3. Annual Retiree Luncheon on Friday, April 29, 2011 at 12:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147th Street 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 2, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147th Street 
5. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 6, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest Center 
6. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
7. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at Georgetown Club 
8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2010, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
9. 2011 Graduation on Saturday, May 28, 2011 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 1 p.m., 

and Millard West at 4 p.m. 
10. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147th Street 
11. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 13, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
12. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
13. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 11, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147th Street 
 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request form is 
given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 
L.  Adjournment All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  

Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 
 
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may be 
deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 
 

7



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

 
A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of 
Nebraska.  The meeting was convened in open and public session at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 7, 2011, at the Don Stroh 
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.   
 

Present: Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, Michael Kennedy, Patrick Ricketts, and Julie Kannas 
 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, March 4, 2011; a copy 
of the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of 
Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.  
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this 
meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the 
public. 
 
 
Dave Anderson called the meeting to order and announced the public meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for 
public inspection.  Mr. Anderson asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll call was taken and all members were present. 
 
Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Julie Kannas, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from February 21, 
2011, to approve the bills, and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  
Motion carried. 
 
Linda Poole summarized the Board Committee of the Whole meeting held on Monday, February 28, 2011.  The topic for 
discussion was budget. 
 
Employees of the Month for March were Patti Long, media specialist at Upchurch Elementary, and Patricia Sheley, re-
teaching paraprofessional at Rockwell Elementary. 
 
Showcase highlighted all State High School Musicians in band, choir and orchestra from the three high schools. 
 
Superintendent’s Comments: 
 

1.   The budget process discussions have just begun, with the Q-Sort being done this Friday.  The budget will not 
come to the Superintendent for a while and not to the Board until a little bit later.  However, the discussions 
will continue with the Board.  Next week at the Committee meeting the topics to be discussed will be on 
budget projections and legislation.  The next Board meeting will be on March 21, 2011. 

 
2. Last week Dr. Lutz fulfilled several invitations to read in the buildings during Dr. Seuss week. 
 
3. Last Tuesday, on Teacher Recognition Day, a greeting was sent to the Millard staff on behalf of the Board of 

Education.  Teachers in the building were given tickets for a free lunch, and other department received 
cookies. 

 
4.   During the PROCOM discussion there was a lot of discussion on the resolution, but, because of the 

relationship that has been built with members of the MEA the comments were not heated, but the vote was 
noticed by the staff members. 

 
Board Comments: 
 
Julie Kannas thanked the Millard Staff members for all of their hard work. 
 
Mike Kennedy said he echo’s the comment made by Mrs. Kannas about the staff.   

8



 
Mr. Kennedy expressed his concerns about remarks made by the chair of the Learning Community when he said the 
board’s efforts were misguided and inappropriate about the board’s efforts to change the legislation on the governance of 
the Learning Community.  He said it was inappropriate for an elected member of any board not to follow the wishes of 
their constituents, because both Elkhorn and Millard would like to see some changes. The Board and the Superintendent 
efforts were to reform it and to keep the Learning Community together, but to make sure there is input from the school 
districts.  Once again, Mr. Kennedy continued, that he sees the power plays being made for more and more power to the 
Learning Community.  Mr. Kennedy said he was wondering why the chair of the Learning Community is so opposed to 
the making reasonable changes and representing the interests of his constituents, and he is offended by the remarks that he 
has made.  Mr. Kennedy said the six board members of Millard are certainly opposed to “One City One School District”, 
granting any more power to the Learning Community, or even having the Learning Community. 
 
Mike Pate agreed with the statement made previous by Mike Kennedy. 
 
Mr. Pate said his testimony before the legislature about the need for a change of the governance structure lasted about 
forty-five minutes, and he sensed it was well received.   Obviously the state senators didn’t feel it was important enough 
to pass through the committee, because they killed the bill in committee.  However, he was glad for the opportunity to 
speak to the senators and to go through the process trying to improve the governance structure of the Learning 
Community, because that is why it was pursued. 
 
Mr. Pate took exception with the comments made by the chair of the Learning Community, and Mr. Pate questioned the 
inappropriate use of taxpayer dollars by the Learning Community in where and why they are spending their funds.  He 
will be asking for different records from the Learning Community.  He also asked the chair to be informed of all 
information associated with the Learning Community, but this has not been happening.  He stated he has real concerns 
about the continuation of the Learning Community, and that is hard to justify its existence.  He will not give up the battle 
to make the Learning Community better. 
 
Mr. Pate said he would be out of town next week and will not be at the committee meeting. 
 
Linda Poole thanked all of the teachers for their hard work and efforts all year long for the students of Millard.  She and 
her daughters all attended Millard and received a great education and the teachers are the reason they did. 
 
Mrs. Poole said she will attend the NASB Board of Directors meeting on March 18 and 19th.  She will bring back a report 
after the meeting. 
 
Mrs. Poole thanked Senator McCoy for sponsoring the district’s legislative bill to change the governance structure of the 
Learning Community.  She said the Millard board and the other school districts that became involved knew it would be a 
hard battle, but it was worth the effort.  She said now we need to decide on the next steps and to find another way to get 
some changes made in that bill whether something could be attached to another bill.  She agreed with Mr. Pate that she is 
not willing to give up the battle either. 
 
Mrs. Poole said she was disappointed in the comments made in the paper about the board being misguided and 
inappropriate in efforts to change the governance structure by the chair of the Learning Community.  She said he was a 
long time administrator in the district and knows what a great school district Millard is and she took his comments 
personal.  She said a lot of time and effort went into the legislative bill, and if it would have been changed it would have 
been best for the students in both Douglas and Sarpy Counties.  Again, she said she would like the chair of the Learning 
Community to know about how disappointed she was in his comments, and that this board stands strong in their position 
and will fight it whichever way possible. 
 
Patrick Ricketts thanked all of the teachers for all they do. 
 
Mr. Ricketts also thanked the administration for the information on the budget at the Committee meeting.  He realizes 
there are critical decisions to be made, and he appreciated all of the different scenarios.   He also appreciates the level of 
communication from the administration during this budget process. 
 
He was disappointed on the outcome of the LB 548; obviously we will be trying to make it an effective process. 

9



 
Mr. Ricketts said he enjoyed being a judge at the elementary culinary cook-off. 
 
Mr. Ricketts said the students at Millard South did a good job during the job interviews last week.  He said he was 
impressed at the level of confidence they have as freshman.  He will be reading at Harvey Oaks. 
 
Dave Anderson reported that he read at Black Elk to kindergarteners, and they were very nice to him. 
 
Mr. Anderson said thank you to the teachers.  He wanted the teachers to know he appreciates what they do every day.  A 
number of things make the Millard school district great and teachers are certainly one of them. 
 
Jeff Story, student representative from Millard North High School and Isis Hernandez, student representative from Millard 
South High School shared the athletic and academic activities from their respective building over the last few weeks. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Julie Kannas, to approve the Parking and Cooperative Use Agreement between the 
District and Devine Shepherd Lutheran Church as submitted and that the Associate Superintendent for General 
Administration be authorized and directed to execute such Agreement on behalf of the District, upon roll call vote, all 
members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Julie Kannas, to approve that meal prices for school year 2011-2012 be established 
as follows:  Elementary School Breakfast ($1.30) and Lunch ($2.05); Middle School Breakfast ($1.55) and Lunch ($2.25); 
High School Breakfast ($1.80) and Lunch ($2.50 and $3.00); and that adult meal prices be set at the minimum level 
required by state and federal regulations, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the contract for the Cather Fire Alarm Replacement Project be 
awarded to Hiller Electric Company in the amount of $67,500 as submitted in their bid of February 15, 2011; and, further, 
that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents 
related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Julie Kannas, to approve the contract for the Rockwell HVAC Project be awarded to 
N. Pitlor & Sons in the amount of $174,900 as submitted in their bid of February 15, 2011; and, further, that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such 
project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried.  
 
Motion by to approve the contract for the MNHS Soccer Bleacher Project be awarded to Mackie Construction, LLC in the 
amount of $59,766.54 as submitted in their bid of February 16, 2011; and, further, that the associate superintendent for 
general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call 
vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Mike Kennedy, to approve the contract for the Morton Elementary Playground 
Erosion Project be awarded to Dostals Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $48,960.40 as submitted in their bid 
of February 17, 2011; and, further, that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed 
to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Linda Poole provided the first reading of Policy 10001 – Site-Based Planning and Management – Mini-Magnets.  This 
policy will be on the next board agenda for approval. 
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Julie Kannas, to approve the Learning Community Elementary Learning Center Pilot 
Program Agreement (Sub-council #4), upon roll call vote, Dave Anderson, Mike Kennedy, Julie Kannas, Patrick Ricketts, 
Linda Poole, and Julie Kannas voted aye.  Mike Pate abstained.  Motion carried.  
 
Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Julie Kannas, to approve the contract for the installation and maintenance of 
electronic advertisement displays in Lyle Buell Stadium as well as the sales of advertisement panels for the electronic 
displays in Lyle Buell Stadium be awarded to ScoreTables by Design for the 2011-2012, 2012-2013, 2013-2014, and 
2014-2015 school years and that the Director of Activities and Athletics be authorized and directed to execute the contract 

10







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
March 21, 2011 

 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 21, 2011

Date: 3/16/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
AMERICAN EXPRESS011651321994 1,781.84 
AMSAN LLC069689321995 99.50 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436321996 260.00 
HY-VEE INC133397321998 72.59 
HY-VEE INC132878321999 456.17 
HY-VEE INC049851322000 1,111.46 
EDU SAFE LLC138561322001 378.00 
NE DEPT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES131412322002 120.00 
NEBRASKA EDUCATIONAL TECH ASSN100216322003 345.00 
JOSEPH T O'NEILL138562322004 6,880.00 
HEIDI T PENKE107783322006 790.93 
PETTY CASH/YAP132115322007 253.75 
POPPLERS MUSIC INC072900322008 110.94 
SIMPLEXGRINNELL083400322010 118.43 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA-LINCOLN068878322011 135.00 
BLAIR COMMUNITY SCHOOLS132607322037 140.00 
TERENCE G CABRAL138539322038 300.00 
DANIEL P CONWAY138547322039 600.00 
LINDA K DICKESON134464322040 640.60 
ANGELA M DIEHM133261322041 150.00 
DOUGLAS COUNTY TREASURER033901322042 45.00 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773322044 9,489.74 
HY-VEE INC133397322045 783.38 
SCOTT  H INGWERSON136349322046 592.68 
JARED LANGEMEIER138549322047 125.00 
MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL065443322048 158.00 
NEBRASKA'S CREATIVE ASSN FOR136575322049 250.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732322050 487.50 
NETCHEMIA LLC138425322051 1,320.00 
TIMOTHY J OWENS138175322052 150.00 
PHI DELTA KAPPA072400322053 264.00 
TODD L REESON138504322054 350.00 
THERESA M RUDE138564322055 100.00 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910322057 793.00 
UNITED NATIONS INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL137304322058 880.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354322059 137.50 
RUDOLPH A VLCEK III135863322060 118.75 
WEATHERCRAFT ENTERPRISES, INC.108045322061 57.50 
JUSTIN L WILLIAMSON138537322062 300.00 
HEIDI H ADAMS138578322063 400.00 
LARRY A ANDREWS138565322065 140.00 
ATS MOBILE TELEPHONE CO INC010083322066 75.69 
RAYMOND J SAVARD136956322067 3,000.00 
ELI BARTS137308322068 100.00 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111322069 23,225.31 
MELISSA A BRENDEL138566322070 10.80 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 21, 2011

Date: 3/16/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NANCY J CARVER130285322071 270.00 
CURTIS R CASE131158322072 384.47 
CONSTRUCT INC135287322073 10,115.00 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING106893322074 47.22 
DEEP ROCK WATER130339322075 8.60 
EZRA ELEMENTARY132591322077 334.70 
TRACI J GILMER135808322080 74.78 
FLAMINA M HARRISON138385322082 615.58 
LEISA A HEIMANN137905322083 80.24 
RONALD HERTZBERG138359322084 175.00 
VICTORIA L HOSKOVEC136336322085 358.32 
KARA L HUTTON130283322086 985.44 
AMANDA J JOHNSON131367322087 545.00 
DAVID KAHM137214322088 110.32 
MIKE KENNEDY132668322089 129.80 
SUSAN KEOGH138127322090 121.22 
KRAIG J LOFQUIST133758322091 10.87 
DOUG MARR107750322092 180.00 
SUZANNE R MELLIGER133998322093 547.47 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403322094 1,145.67 
FERNANDO A MONTEJANO138469322095 120.00 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843322096 786.98 
ASHLEY NIELSEN138567322097 362.50 
AMY NUNAMAKER134628322098 356.25 
PAPIO TRANSPORT SCHOOL SERVICE INC138288322102 11,971.00 
M MICHELE PHILLIPS138576322103 160.00 
LINDA POOLE072899322104 1,721.62 
MADELINE RADCLIFF137293322105 140.00 
PEGGY A SCHLIEKER138568322107 450.00 
COLETTE J SCHWEERS135960322109 87.18 
MARTI K SEIBERLING082920322110 62.09 
SHELLY A SMITH132003322112 279.00 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES101476322113 97,153.77 
SODORO, DALY & SODORO PC138132322114 288.00 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822322115 1,103.38 
GREGORY E TIEMANN132493322116 1,414.20 
BARBARA J TOEWS130763322117 110.32 
UNITED ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO INC090214322118 30.72 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE090242322119 723.57 
CRISTINA T VERAZA138569322120 20.00 
GAGE WALLACE138570322121 100.00 
NICOLE K WEIDEMAN135746322123 419.80 
WESTONE LABORATORIES094630322124 34.20 
YOUNG & WHITE096200322125 28,821.04 
DOUGLAS COUNTY TREASURER033901322126 21.00 

221,074.38 Total for GENERAL FUND

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 21, 2011

Date: 3/16/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SARAH J BANIK13788922907 111.20 
DAMON BARBER13833122908 41.70 
NICOLE E BROM13773122909 6.95 
JAYCE BUSCH13813722910 20.85 
MARKAIL CHANNEL13827022911 62.55 
MADELEINE R COLBERT13716022912 20.85 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING10689322913 15.73 
ERIC A DALHOFF13857322914 104.26 
RAFAEL DIAZ13699922915 52.13 
JASON FIGGINS13803922916 31.28 
JUSTIN FIGGINS13804022917 31.28 
MARLEY J FLEMING13700022918 111.20 
CODY M GELVIN13813822919 6.95 
ENCORE ONE LLC13598322920 1,143.15 
LAUREN N GRIEB13857422921 62.55 
ANDERS J HANSON13840322922 27.80 
DEVAN JAMES13833322923 20.25 
NIKEE Z JAMES13827122924 72.98 
TAYLOR M KIM13716222925 27.80 
MICHAEL KRMPOTIC13737622926 62.55 
ROWAN W LANG10222922927 84.06 
ANGELA M LEUSCHEN13763322928 13.77 
ZAKARY R LINES13833422929 6.95 
AVERY K LOVGREN13772922930 27.80 
ANDREW E LUCAS JR13725122931 31.28 
TAYLOR J MARSHALL13657022932 111.20 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT13627922933 435.10 
CASSANDRA M MUNSON13827222934 111.20 
SOPHIA O NICHOLS13778622935 13.90 
EDRIE K PEARCE10244522936 520.42 
DEB RINGER13090322937 29.99 
SAMSON SANDERS13808322938 31.28 
TREY A SCHULTZ13700222939 52.13 
BARBARA J SHIFFERMILLER13204722940 24.23 
KATHERINE L BOYLE13505722941 69.11 
KAITLYN C SNODDY13636722942 31.28 
MARISOL SORIANO13849122943 104.25 
RYAN E SPITZER13793322944 41.70 
ZEFFREY A TRUSLER13840222945 20.85 
BRET A WATSON13778522946 6.95 
CARLY J WHITE13767222947 34.75 
AUSTIN K WILSON13700322948 31.28 

3,867.49 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

DONOVAN PROPERTIES LLC136245322076 1,581.76 

1,581.76 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 21, 2011

Date: 3/16/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
RITA PASKOWITZ106973322005 1,200.00 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630322009 51.96 
AMERICAN ASSN OF PHYSICS TEACHERS135167322036 81.00 
NEBRASKA'S CREATIVE ASSN FOR136575322049 610.00 
NANCY G ANDERSON012896322064 42.73 
TARA R FABIAN134861322078 109.93 
DIANNE L FULTON132586322079 20.06 
CARRIE L GOTTSCHALK138034322081 250.00 
LYN E PAHLS133964322099 138.97 
BARBARA L ROTHENBERG130747322106 22.37 
PAUL M SCHULTE137294322108 309.20 
AMANDA M SMITH138557322111 99.40 
MICHELLE L WATERS133259322122 418.07 
NICOLE K WEIDEMAN135746322123 52.98 

3,406.67 Total for GRANT FUND
DARREL DRAPER107948321997 125.00 
DARREL DRAPER107948322043 125.00 
DOUG RUZICKA108435322056 595.00 

845.00 Total for ACTIVITY FUND

230,775.30 Report Total               

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75





AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Policy 10001  
 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
 
TITLE AND  
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Second Reading and Approval of Policy 10001 
 Site-Based Planning and Management - 
 Mini-Magnets 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  ___X___ Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   Changes to the Policy have been made to incorporate Strategic 

Planning Program parameters.   The original rules 10001.1 and 
10001.2 dealing with creation of mini-magnets and programs to 
enhance low-enrollment schools have been combined into a single 
process and timeline to eliminate confusion and promote a more 
efficient process.  Policy and rule have been reviewed by District 
legal counsel. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None 
 
 
TIMELINE: N/A 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S):  Mark Feldhausen and Carol Newton 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:   ______________________________ 
 (Signature) 
 
 
BOARD ACTION: 

77

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Site-Based Planning and Management 10001 
 
Mini-Magnets 
 
The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools No. 17 District supports the philosophy of alternative 
programs and parental choice, henceforth called mini-magnets as originally called for in the District Strategic Plan.  
The criteria of a A mini-magnet addresses a specific unmet educational need that does not duplicate existing 
programs or methods already in place and does not jeopardize current programs for the majority of students.  No 
new program will be added unless it meets a clearly demonstrated, mission-related need; it survives a cost-benefit 
analysis; its impact on other programs/courses/services is addressed; adequate staffing, staff development, funding 
and facilities are provided; and it contains an evaluation procedure.  The proposed mini-magnet does not put undo 
stress on the District for sufficient staff, staff training, resources and facilities.  Nothing will take precedence over 
the pre-kindergarten through 12th grade education program. 
 
The philosophy of mini-magnet development shall be evident in the Millard School District through the opportunity 
of personnel, parents, community members, and students when appropriate, to collaborate in the design and 
implementation of (1) Mission philosophy sStatement, (2) program goals, (3) yearly developed activities, (4) 
curriculum selection, (5) instructional methods, (6) staff selection, and (7) evaluation methods.  Mini-magnets will 
abide within the District policy and guidelines, district strategic plan, district and state standards and indicators and 
assessments and outcomes, and function within the budget constraints given. 
 
While fully supporting these collaborative efforts, the Board recognizes its ultimate authority and responsibility for 
decisions, which impact the direction of education in the Millard Schools. 
 
 
Policy Adopted: February 16, 1998 Millard Public Schools 
Revised: May 19, 2008; March 21, 2011 Omaha, Nebraska 

78



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Rule 10001.1 
 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
 
TITLE AND  
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Approval of Rule 10001.1 
 Site-Based Planning and Management - 
 Mini-Magnets 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  ___X___ Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   Changes to Policy 10001 have been made to incorporate Strategic 

Planning Program parameters.   The original rules 10001.1 and 
10001.2 dealing with creation of mini-magnets and programs to 
enhance low-enrollment schools have been combined into a single 
process and timeline to eliminate confusion and promote a more 
efficient process.  Policy and rule have been reviewed by District 
legal counsel. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None 
 
 
TIMELINE: N/A 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S):  Mark Feldhausen and Carol Newton 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:   ______________________________ 
 (Signature) 
 
 
BOARD ACTION: 

79



Site-Based Planning and Management 10001.1 
 
Mini-Magnet Development Process 
 
Introduction: 
 
The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools District

 

 supports the philosophy of mini-magnet programs as 
reflected in this rule.   

The Board District believes that mini-magnet development can be achieved through the process of shared decision-making.  
The process provides that certain decisions concerning mini-magnet development can be made at the program level, 
through the stakeholders most directly involved with the program, and within the context of the District’s policies and 
plans.  The Board of Education recognizes that shared decision-making provides the opportunity for staff, parents, 
community members, and students, to collaborate in the District’s Strategic Plan and promote increased student enrollment 
and achievement through alternative educational processes.  

 

Proposals for mini-magnets may be the result of community 
interest, a building site plan, District strategic plan, and/or District initiation. 

While fully supporting these collaborative efforts, the Board recognizes its ultimate authority and responsibility for 
decisions that impact the direction of education in the Millard Public Schools.  In the case of low enrollment, the 
Superintendent shall inform low enrollment buildings of the opportunity for building site teams to plan for their future with 
this rule to guide their planning.  In the event that low enrollment buildings do not generate a plan for their future, the 
Superintendent may direct the development of a plan for the future of low enrollment buildings in accordance with this 
rule.  If necessary, the Superintendent may replace and reassign the current principal and staff, and assemble a building 
team to implement the District-generated plan.

 

  The authority and responsibilities delegated to the mini-magnet 
Development Task Force shall be in accordance with district policies and shall be subject to the authority and responsibility 
of the Board of Education, the Superintendent and the administrator of the mini-magnet or district unit or division which 
the task force represents.   

 
 
Definitions: 
 
Mini-Magnet is the broad term used to identify a district-sponsored program that utilizes a specific curriculum, classroom 
management and structure, and instructional practices that are significantly different from the regular Pre K-12 Education 
Program, yet still embraces the District outcomes standards, indicators, and assessments while attracting students from 
across the District 

 

and open to students from outside the District.  Examples of such mini-magnets include, but are not 
limited to, Core Academy, Montessori, and International Baccalaureate (Primary Years Program, Middle Years Program, 
and Diploma Program) programs.    

 

In addition, mini-magnets may be designed to attract enrollment through the use of a district-funded and district-directed 
program with a specific, specialized concentration encompassing K-5, 6-8 and/or 9-12 in all areas and which is intended to 
attract interested students.  Such programs may include, but are not limited to:  math/science and engineering, computer 
science and technology, visual, performing and communication arts, international studies and foreign language, and year-
round school. 

 

Mini-Magnet Concept Development Committee may be made up of community members and/or interested building staff 
who share a common vision and desire to promote a specific mini-magnet program for District adoption and advancement.  
The Mini-Magnet Concept Development Committee is responsible for completing the initial proposal as defined in Phase I 
of this Rule. 

Mini-Magnet Preliminary Proposal Development Committee is made up of interested stakeholders who participated in 
the Phase 1:  Identification of a Mini-Magnet Concept.  To this committee will be added a designee of the Superintendent 
and other interested parties.  A designee of the Superintendent and other interested parties will be added to this committee.

 

  
This committee will be responsible for the completion of Phase 2:  Preliminary Proposal Development that will be 
submitted to the Superintendent and Cabinet by the specified date.  The Proposal Development Committee understands that 
the proposed mini-magnet concept has not been approved and no commitment has been made to approve the concept.   

80



Mini-Magnet Development Task Force is made up of stakeholders from the program that plan collaboratively by 
establishing their vision and mission, define the goals that shape the direction of the program, and develop the curriculum, 
staff needs, and parent communication.   The development task force shall include a district administrator, parents, staff, 
business partners and students when appropriate.  The development team will have between 10 to 12 members.   The total 
number of certified staff and the total number of parents shall be within one of each other for the development team.  
Representatives other than district employees will be non-paid volunteers.  The development task force would be required 
to complete its work by May, so the staff and administrator could prepare for the start-up of the program.  The goal of the 
development task force would then be complete and this task force would be dissolved. 
 
Parameters for Task Force Meetings: 

• All mini-magnet development task force meetings will be facilitated by a district administrator.  
• All mini-magnet development task force meetings will be scheduled by the administrator of record for that 

program. 
• No mini-magnet development task force meeting will be conducted without a quorum of six members. 
• A consensus decision-making process will be used by the development task force. 
• The mini-magnet development task force’s work will conclude prior to program implementation. 
 

Mini-Magnet Leadership Support will be provided by the District.  The Superintendent, human resources division, and 
the principal of the designated facility will identify the level of need for leadership support, the qualifications of the staff 
person, and their job description.  The leadership support staff person will be brought into the planning process during 
Phase 3: Planning for Start-up. 
 
Mini-Magnet Parent Education Group may meet up to four times each year as needed.  The purpose of the parent group 
will be to provide parents of children in the program an opportunity to learn more about the program, to ask questions 
about the program to program staff, and to raise funds to support specific program needs.  There may be parent officers if 
desired by the parents.  Any activities or fundraising by the parent group cannot conflict with the building PTO/PTA of 
which they are members.  Fundraising will be by parents only, no children will be asked to participate. 
 
Building PTO/PTA will consist of parents from all programs residing in the building.  Officers may be from either group, 
but no specific requirements of equal representation will be enforced.  PTO/PTA sponsored activities and fundraising will 
support the building in general and not be directed to any specific program needs. 
 
Building Planning and Implementation Teams will be a proportional representation of all programs housed in the 
building.  Parents and staff of each program will elect their own members.  Building Planning and Implementation Teams 
will be bound by Policy 10,000. 
 
Consensus Method will be used by the Mini-Magnet Development Task Force in an affirming environment marked by 
mutual support and respect.  Consensus exists when participants whose support is needed to implement a decision, agree 
with the decision and express a commitment to support it. 
 
The process is based on trust and a belief in the strength of shared responsibility in decision-making.  Participants must be 
well informed and communicate effectively in order to make good decisions.  Therefore, school decision makers will use 
processes that include provisions for informed dialogue, decision, action and evaluation.  Participants in the process must 
engage in continuous communications with their constituents so that decisions will reflect agreement within the mini-
magnet community.  Successful processes will allow for communications among constituents so that decisions will reflect 
agreement within the mini-magnet community, not just within a particular committee.  Successful implementation shall 
also require regular oral and written communication among individuals, district administration, and the school board. 
 
If consensus cannot be achieved the administrator for that program may make the necessary interim decisions as they 
continue to work for consensus.  In the event the mini-magnet development task force is unable to function effectively, the 
mini-magnet administrator, or three (3) task force members shall report the same to the District Superintendent together 
with a detailed report of the issues and parts of disagreement where upon the District Superintendent or his/her designee 
shall meet with the Development Task Force to resolve the issues.  If the issues cannot be resolved, the dispute shall be 
submitted to the Board of Education through the Superintendent for resolution of the issue or issues. 
 
 
 
 
 

81



Mini-Magnet Development Phases: 
 
Phase 1:   Identification of a Mini-Magnet Concept 
 
The following information must be submitted to the Superintendent no later than August 31 (Yr.1) to be reviewed 
and presented to Cabinet for consideration by October 1 
 

for consideration by September 15 (Yr.1). 

 
I. Abstract 

 
II. Impetus for Concept Proposal (community based, building site plan, District, etc.) 

I. Identify the need, scope, purpose and description of the program.  

 
III. Need, Scope, Purpose 

A. 
IV. Program Description and Philosophy 

B. 
Instructional philosophy 

C. 
Grade levels 

D. 
Calendar 

 
Specific licensure or training requirements for program or staff 

 

II. Identify the goals of the program.  Is the program consistent with the District strategic plan? Does the 
program duplicate existing goals or methods already in place in the District? Does the program address unmet 
needs in the District? Would the program jeopardize the majority of the students or district program? What 
group of students is this program designed for? 

 
V. Program Goals 

 
A. Identify how the program is consistent with the District strategic plan. 

 
B. Identify how the goals or methods of the program are different from those in existing programs. 

 
C. Identify the needs that this program will meet that are not addressed in the District program. 

 
D. State why the program will not jeopardize the majority of the students or district programs. 

 

  
VI. Target Student Population    

III. 
 

Identify the interest of potential students through parent surveys. 

  
VII. List of Parents Committed to Enrolling Their Child(ren) in the Program (if applicable) 

IV. Secure signatures of program identification group if parent/community initiated
 

. 

A. 
VIII. Program Start-Up Costs and Yearly Reoccuring Costs 

B. 
Staff needed and certification required 

C. 
Training costs 

D. 
Curriculum materials 

E. 
Equipment needs 

F. 
Supplies 

G. 
Facility modifications 

 
Other program needs 

 
IX. Facility Needs for the Program 

 
X. Publicity Plan 

A. 
XI. Parent Involvement Expectations 

 
Volunteer hours, PTO/Booster Club, Fundraising, Homework 

 
XII. Collaboration with Other District Programs 

 
 

82



The Superintendent and Cabinet will apply the following criteria to the mini-magnet concept and render a decision 
to move to Phase 2 by September 15 (Yr.1)
 

: 

 
I. The proposed concept meets the definition of a mini-magnet program 

II. I

 

. A philosophic predisposition exits in the community and is affirmed by the Board of Education that values 
the concept of parent choice in education. 

III. II.

 

 The proposed mini-magnet is consistent with the philosophy of the District and the legal requirements placed 
upon the District.   

IV. III. The proposed mini-magnet does not duplicate existing goals or methods already in place in the District.  The 
proposed mini-magnet addresses previously unmet specific educational 

 

needs.  These needs are well defined 
and capable of being assessed. 

V. IV.

 

 The proposed mini-magnet does not stimulate a major political or values backlash such that the functioning of 
the District for the majority of students would be jeopardized. 

VI.  The proposed mini-magnet meets District Strategic Planning parameters that include:   No new program will 
be added unless it meets a clearly demonstrated, mission-related need; it survives a cost-benefit analysis; its 
impact on other programs/courses/services is addressed; adequate staffing, staff development, funding and 
facilities are provided; and it contains an evaluation procedure.   Nothing will take precedence over the pre-
kindergarten through 12th

 
 grade education program. 

 

VII.  The mini-magnet concept has the potential to increase enrollment in the District and at a specific building as 
demonstrated by an analysis of community interest and enrollment trends in similar programs. 

 
The Superintendent will meet with the mini-magnet concept developers during the next two-week period to respond 
to the request.  If the concept is accepted and allowed to move ahead into Phase 2:  Preliminary Proposal 
Development, a designee of the Superintendent will be assigned to work with the group the Preliminary Proposal 
Development Committee  to develop and submit the proposal Preliminary Proposal by March December 1 (Yr.1).  
The Superintendent will inform the Board of Education about the mini-magnet concept.  

 

Movement from Concept 
Development to Preliminary Proposal Development does not constitute program approval nor a commitment to 
implement the mini-magnet concept. 

 
 
Phase 2:  Preliminary Proposal Development 
 
A cross-section of teachers, parents or prospective students (when appropriate), administration, and community members 
(unpaid volunteers) interested in the mini-magnet concept and involved in the proceeding steps will form the Preliminary

 

 
Proposal Development Committee.  The Superintendent’s designee will become a member of the committee. 

Preliminary Proposal Development Committee will submit a report by December 1 (Yr. 1) with compile

 

 the following 
information: 

I. Expand on Refine the need, scope, purpose and description of the program based upon additional research 
and in response to the Superintendent and Cabinet’s feedback.

 
  

II. Program Description and Philosophy 

A. 
(expanded and refined from Phase I) 

B. 
Specific licensure or training requirements for program r staff 

C. 
Grade levels 

D. 
Calendar 

 
Instructional philosophy 

II. Expand the goals of the program. 
III. Program Goals 

83



A. Identify how the program is consistent with the District strategic plan. 
(expanded and refined from Phase I) 

B. Identify how the goals or methods of the program are different from those in existing programs. 
C. Identify the specific educational needs that this program will meet address 

D. State why the program will not jeopardize the majority of the students or district programs.   

that do not currently exist in 
the District program. 

 

 
III. Develop a list of parents who are committed to enrolling their child in the program. 

 
IV. Objectives and Action Steps 

A. 
V. Curriculum and Instructional Program 

B. 
Curriculum alignment to District Standards & Indicators 

C. 
Curriculum materials 

 
Support Programs 

VI. Detailed Proposed Budget 
IV. 

 

Identify the costs needed to start up the program and yearly reoccurring costs.  Complete a cost-benefit 
analysis of the program. 

VII. Detailed Facility Needs 
V. 

 

Identify the facility and classroom space needs for the program.  Project over a three- to five-year 
program. 

 
VI. Prepare a time line for meeting the preliminary proposal deadline. 

 
VIII. Student Assessments (beyond district and state assessments) 

 
IX. Support Services Needs 

X. Communication Plan 
VII. 

 
Identify a plan for how the program will be publicized. 

 
XI.  Parent Involvement Plan 

A. III. Develop a list of parents who are committed to enrolling their child in the program 

 

through the use 
of district-wide student/parent interest surveys. 

 B. VIII.

 

 Identify expectations of how parents will be involved in the program on an ongoing basis 
(volunteer hours, parent booster club, etc.). 

 
XII. Program Evaluation Plan 

 A. IX.

 

 Identify how the mini-magnet program will work in collaboration with other programs sharing the 
same facility (participation on joint building implementation team, joint PTO, etc.). 

 B. X. Submit preliminary proposal to Associate Superintendent of Educational Services for presentation to 
Cabinet by March 1 December 1 (Yr. 1)

 
. 

 
Cabinet will review the preliminary proposal based on the following feasibility indicators: 
 

I. Sufficient qualified staff exist or can be acquired

 

 to implement the program as it is intended (administrative, 
teaching, aide, support). 

II. Sufficient money exists to secure qualified staff and materials to implement the program as it is intended 
without undo pressure on the regular program. 

 
III. Sufficient space requirements are available to assure that a safe and healthy learning environment without 

undo disruption to other regular programs. 

84



 
IV. The overall expenditures of resources (money, staff and space) are comparable to expenditures for regular 

programs.  (Additional start-up costs may be required in the initial phases of implementation.) 
 

V. The proposed mini-magnet does not place unwarranted or unwanted stress on the neighborhood concept of 
education. 

 
If the preliminary proposal is accepted by Cabinet, it will be submitted to the Millard Board of Education for 
approval by February 1 (Yr. 1)

 

.  If approved by the Board of Education, a program administrator will be assigned 
by the Superintendent along with any other parameters deemed appropriate.  The Superintendent, human 
resources division, and the principal of the designated facility will identify the level of need for leadership support, 
the qualifications of the staff person, and their job description.  The leadership support designee will be brought 
into the planning process sometime during Phase 3 - Planning for Start-Up. 

 
Phase 3:  Planning for Start-up 
 
The Development Task Force will be notified by May 1 February 1 (Yr. 1) to begin Phase 3 and must have the 
following components set forth below developed and presented to Cabinet by December 1 (Yr. 2).  This date is 
critical for budget development, communication with interested staff, parents, and students, enrollment 
considerations under within District transfers and open/option enrollment, and ordering and organizing for fall 
implementation.  The final months of January to May (Yr. 2) 

 

will be utilized for final planning and organization, 
ordering materials, hiring staff, communicating with parents and district staff, and registering students. 

I. The current Proposal Development Committee may be expanded if necessary and changed to the 
Development Task Force.  The job of this task force will be completed prior to program implementation; 
therefore, the task force will be dissolved prior to program implementation. 

 
II. An external facilitator will be assigned by the Superintendent to work with the mini-magnet development task 

force to identify the mission, objectives for the program, and action steps for the objectives. 
 

III. The mini-magnet development task force will meet on a regular basis (weekly, monthly) to develop: 
 

A. Tthe curriculum and instructional program,  
B. Aa proposed budget,  
C. Iidentify facility needs,  
D. Sstudent assessment program,  
E. Pprogram evaluation,  
F. Ttechnology plan,  
G. Ssupport services plan, 
H. Implementation timeline 
I. Grant development/submission 
J. Facility needs 
K. Purchase/obtain materials & equipment 
L. Interview/select staff 
M. Training/staff development 
N. Curriculum alignment 
O. Support programs 
P. Instructional minutes 
Q. Calendar, school schedule 
R. Student registration/enrollment 
S. Student activities/organizations 
T. Representation of Parents on Site Planning Team 

1. 
U. Communication 

2. 
Teachers, parents, community, district at-large 

3. 
PTO/Booster Clubs 

4. 
Parent Education Group 

5. 
Parent involvement plan 
Newsletter 

85



6. 
7. 

Web page 
Program description  

V.
 

  and other program components. 

IV. The administrator on the development task force will submit required reports as needed for District budget 
planning process, facility location, obtaining materials, identification of staff, training of staff, publicize 
program, registration of students, and other start-up needs of the program. 

 
V. A budget for curriculum development, staff training and other initial start-up costs will be implemented. 

 
VI. A budget for classroom set-ups and other needs will be expended in the summer prior to fall implementation. 

 
VII. 

 

An enrollment process will be created and in place by February 1 (Yr.2) to facilitate enrollment into the mini-
magnet program or school.  Enrollment procedures will follow these priorities: 

A. 
B. 

currently enrolled students and/or siblings of currently enrolled students, if applicable, 

C. 
within-district transfer students, 

D. 
open or option enrollment students,   

 
lottery/randomization will be utilized at any of the steps when necessary 

 
VIII. VII. An evaluation process to include evidence and criteria for making judgments about the program will be 

set up with assistance from the Department of Assessment, Research and Evaluation department

 

 for the first 
five years of the program.   Possible questions might include: 

A. What levels are the students achieving in district outcomes? 
 

B. To what extent does the mini-

C. What is the breadth and depth of curriculum? 
 

magnet school implement its program? 
 

D. What instructional practices are used?  
 

E. What is the per-student cost for the program? 
 

F. What role does support services play in the program? 
 

G. What are the demographics of the program? 
 

H. What are the opinions/attitudes of parents, teachers, administrators, and students toward the 
program? 
 

I. 

 

Has the enrollment of the school increased and/or is the mini-magnet enrollment sufficient to sustain 
the program? 

 
 
Phase 4:  Year One of Operation 
 

I. It will be the responsibility of the assigned administrator to continue to refine program needs and work to 
complete the mission and goals of the program.  The mini-magnet leadership support person will be assigned 
specific tasks by the administrator of the building and will be accountable to that person. 

 
II. Communication between teachers, parents, community, and the District at-large is conducted. 

 
III. The building administrator will be responsible to see that a proportional representation of both programs is 

part of the building planning and implementation teams. 
 

86



IV. The building administrator will be responsible for providing conditions for a combined PTO of all program 
groups.  Programs sponsored by PTO will support building projects that include the needs of both. 

 
V. The building administrator will be responsible for organizing a parent education group for the mini-magnet 

program to assist parents with learning about the program, communicating with others about the program, to 
raise funds to support the program, to publish a program newsletter, etc.  The Parent Education Group shall 
meet periodically. 

 
VI. Curriculum development and staff training will continue as needed and be the responsibility of the 

administrator in the building. 
 

VII. The program will be monitored yearly through district assessments, program assessments, and an evaluation 
plan. 

 
 

Phase 5:  Five-Year Program Evaluation 
 
A five-year evaluation will be completed by the Department of Assessment, Research and Evaluation Office of 
Planning, Evaluation and Information Services 

 

at the end of the fifth year of program operation.  If the 
program has met program mission and goals, a cost-benefit analysis, and student achievement levels within the 
range of the District, the program will be considered viable and continue.  If the program has not satisfactorily 
met the above indicators, the Superintendent and Board of Education will have the option to continue the 
program with additional criteria or move to dissolve the program. 

Parameters/Rules: 
 
The following district parameters for the operation of mini-magnets must be met. 
 

I. District student outcomes will be met. 
 

II. District-level assessments will be utilized. 
 

III. Class size will be comparable to other district programs. 
 

IV. Financial support will be comparable to the support for other district programs. 
 

V. Any Millard student may register for the program, unless specific requirements are identified. 
 

VI. Staff evaluation shall be conducted using the District model. 
 

VII. Program evaluation will be on a regular and ongoing basis. 
 

VIII. A Parent Education Group will be organized for purposes of parent communication. 
 

IX. Transportation shall be provided by parents/guardians. 
 

 

 
Responsibilities 

District Site Development Parent Ed  
Level Planning Task Force Group 
 Team 

Staff Evaluation Grants Instr. Strategies Parent Education 
Personnel Site Mission Curriculum Publicize 
Policy  Site Goals Program Assessments Program Activities 
Budget Allocation Site Plans Staff Selection Input Program  
Calendar Fundraising Publicize   Fundraising 
Maintenance PTO Program Mission Newsletter 
District & State Assessments Site Budget Program Goals 

87



District Outcomes Standards 
  

 Site Activities Parent Involvement 
& Indicators 

Curriculum/Program Support Planning Team 
Program
Food Service 

 Evaluation Implementation Team 

Graduation Requirements 
Facility 
Hiring 
 
 
2-YEAR,
 

 18-MONTH TIME LINE 

PHASE 1 
Year  Month
1 

 Date Task 
1 Oct. 1  Aug. 1-31 Submit mini-magnet concept to Cabinet 

 
Superintendent 

1 1  Oct. 1-14  Sept. 1-15
          to Proposal Development Committee 

 Superintendent decision to move ahead.  Designee assigned  

 

1 
PHASE 2 

1-6 Oct. 14 – Mar. 1
  

  Proposal Development Committee develops 
Sept. 16 – Nov. 30

 
      Preliminary Proposal based on criteria. 

1 6 Mar. 1 Submit Preliminary Proposal to Superintendent,
  

 Cabinet,  
Dec. 1 - Jan. 31      and if needed Board  for decision on mini-magnet concept

 
. 

 6-7 Mar. 1 – May 1 
    

Superintendent, Cabinet and Board make  

 
decisions about the mini-magnet concept. 

1 
PHASE 3 

8-14 May 1 – Dec. 1
  

  Development Task Force begins planning start up. 
Feb. 1 – April 30

         the Superintendent for budget, facilities, communication,  
      Specific information is developed and provided  

         ordering, etc.  Submit initial information to Superintendent. 
 
1-2 14-18 Dec. 1 
  

May 1 (Yr.1) 
Nov. 1 (Yr.2)

 
 Final planning and organization for start-up. 

2  Nov. 1 – Dec. 1 
        

Superintendent, Cabinet, and Board final review and  

 
decision to advance to Program Budgeting or not. 

2 18 May  January – June
        combined Planning/Implementation Team is elected,  

 Development Task Force dissolves, program is implemented,  

        PTO organized, and Parent Education Group formed. 
 
 
 
Rule Approved:  February 16, 1998 Millard Public Schools 
Revised: May 19, 2008; March 21, 2011 Omaha, Nebraska 

88



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Rule 10001.2 
 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
 
TITLE AND  
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Deletion of Rule 10001.2 
 Site-Based Planning and Management - 
 Mini-Magnets 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  ___X___ Deletion 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   Changes to Policy 10001 have been made to incorporate Strategic 

Planning Program parameters.   The original rules 10001.1 and 
10001.2 dealing with creation of mini-magnets and programs to 
enhance low-enrollment schools have been combined into a single 
process and timeline to eliminate confusion and promote a more 
efficient process.  Policy and rule have been reviewed by District 
legal counsel. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None 
 
 
TIMELINE: N/A 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S):  Mark Feldhausen and Carol Newton 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:   ______________________________ 
 (Signature) 
 
 
BOARD ACTION: 

89



Site-Based Planning and Management 
 

 
Center Development: A Plan for Low Enrollment Buildings 10001.2 

I. 
 

Definitions 

A. 
1. 
Center 

2. 

A Center is a school with a program designed to attract enrollment through the use of a 
district-funded and -directed program with a specific, specialized concentration 
encompassing K-5, 6-8 and/or 9-12 in all areas and which is intended to attract interested 
students.  

a. 

Such proposed programs may originate from either a low enrollment building or the 
District. Such programs may include, but are not limited to: 

b. 
math/science and engineering 

c. 
computer science and technology 

d. 
visual, performing and communication arts 

e. 
international studies and foreign language 

 
year-round school 

B. 
1. 
Center Development Team 

a. 

A Center Development Team shall consist of individuals designated by the 
Superintendent, who shall participate in the development of the building’s Center Plan. 

b. 

The Center Development Team shall be appointed by the Superintendent or 
designee and may include a district administrator, parents, building staff and, 
when appropriate, business partners and students  

2. 
Representatives other than district employees will be non-paid volunteers.  

a. 

If building-generated, the Center Development Team is made up of stakeholders from the 
building, including but not limited to the site-based planning team and/or the School 
Improvement Team, who plan a Center collaboratively by:  

b. 
establishing the vision and mission  

c. 
defining the goals that shape the direction of the Center program 

d. 
determining the curriculum for the Center  

e. 
determining staff needs 

3. 
determining parent communication.  

a. 

If district-generated, the Center Development Team will be comprised of district 
curriculum staff with building leadership designated by the Superintendent. This team 
will: 

b. 
establish the vision and mission 

c. 
define the goals that shape the direction of the program  

d. 
develop the curriculum 

e. 
determine the staffing arrangement and  

4. 
determine the parent communication.   

 

The Development Team will be required to complete its work by Year One, December 1, 
so the staff and administrator can prepare for the start-up of the program which is due by 
Year Two, May 1.  The goal of the Development Team would then be complete and this 
team would be dissolved. 

II. 
 

Introduction 

A. 

B. 

The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools supports the development of Centers as a 
plan to attract students for low enrollment buildings.  

1. 
Center development shall be achieved through the process of shared decision-making.   

2. 

Decisions concerning Center development may be made at the building level, involving 
those individuals most directly involved with the program, and at the District level within 
the context of the District’s policies and plans.   

C. 

Shared decision-making will provide the opportunity for staff, parents, community 
members, and students to collaborate and promote increased student achievement. 

 

The Board recognizes its ultimate authority and responsibility for decisions that impact the 
direction of education in the Millard Public Schools. 

90



1. 

2. 

The Superintendent shall inform low enrollment buildings of the opportunity for building 
teams to plan for their future with this rule to guide their planning.   

3. 

In the event that low enrollment buildings do not generate a plan for their future, the 
Superintendent may direct the development of a plan for the future of low enrollment 
buildings in accordance with this rule  

D. 

If necessary, the Superintendent may replace and reassign the current principal and staff, 
and assemble a building team to implement the District-generated plan.   

 

The authority and responsibilities delegated to the Center Development Team shall be in 
accordance with district policies and shall be subject to the authority and responsibility of the 
Board of Education, the Superintendent and the building administrator. 

III. 
 

Parameters for Center Development Team Meetings 

A. 
B. 

All Center Development Team meetings will be facilitated by a building or district administrator.  

 
A consensus decision-making process will be used by the Center Development Team. 

IV. 
  

Center Leadership Support 

A. 
B. 

Center leadership support will be provided by the District. 

 

The Superintendent will identify the level of need for leadership support, the qualifications of the 
staff, and their job descriptions.  The leadership support staff person will be involved with the 
planning process during Phase 2: Planning for Start-Up. 

V. 
 

Center Parent Education Group 

A. 

B. 

The purpose of the Center parent education group will be to provide parents an opportunity to 
learn more about the program, ask questions about the program or program staff.  

 
Center Parent Education Groups shall meet as needed.   

VI. 
 

Center Development 

A. 
1. 
Preliminary Phase: Center Proposal Development 

a. 
On or before Year One, January 15, low enrollment schools: 

b. 
will be identified by the Office of the Superintendent 

c. 
will be informed of their status as low enrollment schools 

2. 

will be alerted to the contents of Rule 10001.2, Center Development, timelines 
and planning phases 

a. 

On or before Year One, May 1, low enrollment schools shall declare their intention to the 
Superintendent regarding Center Development of each school year, and indicate their 
timeline for proceeding with Center Development.  The team will provide the following 
information: 

b. 
The need, scope, purpose and description of the proposed Center program.  

1) 
The goals of the program:  

2) 
Identify how the program is consistent with the District strategic plan. 

3) 

Identify how the goals or methods of the program are different from 
those in existing programs. 

4) 

Identify the needs that this program will meet that do not currently exist 
in the District program. 

5) 
Identify the staff development needs for the program. 

6) 

State why the program will not jeopardize the majority of the students 
or district program. 

3. 

State what the attraction will be for increased enrollment at the low 
enrollment school. 

 

On or before Year One, June 1, low enrollment schools will receive a “status report” 
from the Superintendent to inform them of the District’s expectations and intentions 
pertaining to the timeline set forth for increasing the school’s enrollment. 

B. 
1. 
Phase 1:  Center Proposal Development 

Center Development Teams at the building level shall develop the proposal of the 
building’s Center Plan.  The Superintendent or designee will become a member of the 

91



committee. The following information shall be submitted to the Superintendent on or 
before Year One, December 1: 
a. 

b. 

refined statement of need, scope and goals based on the Superintendent’s 
response 

c. 
interest of potential students through district-wide data 

d. 
signatures of Center Development Team  

e. 

identify the facility and classroom space needs for the program and the space 
available within the school to accommodate the program. Project use of building 
space over a three to five year time period. 

1) 

The administrator on the Center Development Team will submit required reports 
for an Implementation Plan (Phase-in over multiple years, if necessary) for:  

2) 
district budget planning process  

3) 
evidence of sufficient enrollment 

4) 
facility needs  

5) 
obtaining materials  

6) 
identification of staff  

7) 
training of staff 

8) 
publicizing and marketing  the program to the identified target market 

9) 
registration of students 

10) 
timeline, and 

f. 
other start-up needs of the program. 

g. 

A budget for curriculum development, staff training and other initial start-up 
costs will be implemented. 

h. 

A budget for classroom set-ups and other needs will be expended in the summer 
prior to fall implementation 

 
A cost-benefit analysis will be conducted. 

C. 
1. 
The Superintendent and/or designee shall review the Center Plan to evaluate and determine that: 

2. 

The Center concept being proposed is a significantly different emphasis with a specific 
specialized concentration encompassing one of the levels K-5, 6-8 or 9-12 and designed 
to attract students to the school with low enrollment. 

3. 

A proposed Center is consistent with the parameters of the strategic plan, the philosophy 
of the District and the legal requirements placed upon the District.   

4. 

The proposed Center addresses previously unmet needs.  These needs are defined and 
capable of being assessed. 

5. 

The proposed Center does not stimulate a major political or values backlash such that the 
functioning of the District for the majority of students would be jeopardized. 

6. 

Sufficient qualified staff exist to implement the program as it is intended (administrative, 
teaching, paraprofessional, support). 

7. 

Sufficient money exists to secure qualified staff and materials to implement the program 
as it is intended without undo pressure on the regular programs of the District or building. 

8. 
Sufficient space requirements are available.  

9. 

The overall expenditures of resources (money, staff and space) are comparable to 
expenditures for regular programs.  (Additional start-up costs may be required in the 
initial phases of implementation.) 

 
The benefits outweigh the costs; i.e., the project survives a cost-benefit analysis. 

D. 
1. 
The Superintendent will report on the Center proposal to the Board of Education.  

2. 

The Center Development Team will be notified on or before Year Two, January 15 as to 
the proposal’s disposition. 

 

The minimum number of students necessary to implement the program will be 
determined by the Superintendent and communicated to the low enrollment school.  

E. 

1. 

Phase 2: Planning for Start-Up.  The following components shall be developed and presented to 
the Superintendent on or before Year Two, May 1.  

a. 
Center Development Team members will:  

b. 
determine the curriculum and instructional program   

c. 
implement staff development  
organize and modify the facility  

92



d. 
2. 

develop a support services plan, and other program components. 

a. 
Establish enrollment procedures that follow these priorities: 

b. 
currently enrolled students 

c. 
siblings of currently enrolled students 

d. 
within-district transfer students 

e. 
option enrollment students   

3. 
lottery will be utilized at any of the steps when necessary 

a. 

An annual evaluation process to include evidence and criteria for making judgments and 
recommendations about the program will be set up with assistance from the Office of 
Planning, Evaluation, and Information Services.  Possible questions might include: 

b. 
Has the enrollment of the school increased? 

c. 
What levels are the students achieving in district outcomes? 

d. 
To what extent does the Center school implement its program? 

e. 
What is the breadth and depth of curriculum? 

f. 
What instructional practices are used?  

g. 
What is the per-student cost for the program? 

h. 
What role does support services play in the program? 

i. 
What are the demographics of the program? 

 

What are the opinions/attitudes of parents, teachers, administrators, and students 
toward the program? 

F. 
1. 
Phase 3:  Two-Three Year Implementation 

2. 

The building administrator shall continue to refine program needs and work to complete 
the mission and goals of the program.  

3. 

Communication between teachers, parents, community, and the District at-large shall 
continue as needed. 

4. 

Curriculum development and staff training will continue as needed and be the 
responsibility of the building principal. 

 

If, after one year, sufficient enrollment is not achieved, the District may alter, amend or 
terminate the program.  

VII. 
A. 
The following district parameters for the operation of Centers must be met: 

B. 
Enrollment is increasing toward the Superintendent’s goal for full building utilization. 

C. 
District student outcomes will be met. 

D. 
District-level assessments will be utilized.  

E. 
Class size will be comparable to other district programs. 

F. 
Financial support will be comparable to the support for other district programs. 

G. 
Staff evaluation shall be conducted using the District model. 

H. 
Program evaluation will be on a regular and ongoing basis. 

 
Transportation shall be provided by parents/guardians. 

 
Timeline for Center Development 

Year 1 January 15 Identify low enrollment schools 
Year 1 May 1 Low enrollment schools provide preliminary proposals and timeline for proceeding 
Year 1 June 1  Low enrollment schools receive a “status report:” 
Year 1  July-August Add to site plan 
Year 1  December 1 Center Proposal presented to Cabinet - Phase I: Center Proposal Development  
Year 2  January 15 Cabinet response and Superintendent report to the Board 
Year 2  January 15 Superintendent notifies low enrollment school of acceptance, rejection, modification 
Year 2  May 1  Phase 2: Planning for Start-Up completed and presented to Cabinet  

 
Year 2  August   Implementation begins 

 
Adopted:  June 19, 2000 Millard Public Schools 

 
Revised:  May 19, 2008 Omaha, Nebraska 

 

93



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM:    Policy 5800 
 
MEETING DATE:     March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Pupil Services 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  District Computers, Software, and Data 

Files 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Reaffirm 
 
BACKGROUND:   The policy is up for periodic review. 
 All students are required to adhere to laws, 

policies, and rules governing computer, 
software and data file use. 

 
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE  
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Reaffirm 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  
HUMAN RESOURCES:                              Dr. Jim Sutfin, Executive Director  
      Human Resources 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:   _________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

94

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services 
 
District Computers, Software, and Data Files 5800 
 
 
District students will adhere to the laws, policies, and rules governing computers including, but not limited to, 
copyright laws, rights of software publishers, license agreements, acts of terrorism, assault, threats, and student 
rights of privacy created by federal and state law. 
 
Legal Reference:  Copyright Acts 
  20 U.S.C.§ 1232g  
  Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2, 104 
  Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-1341 et seq. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy Approved: June 20, 1994 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  December 20, 1999; February 19, 2001 Omaha, NE 
Reaffirmed: January 10, 2011 

95



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM:    Rule 5800.1 
 
MEETING DATE:     March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Pupil Services 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  District Computers, Software, and Data 

Files: Compliance with Applicable Law and 
Use of District Computers 

 
ACTION DESIRED:    Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:   The rule is up for periodic review. 
 All students are required to adhere to laws, 

policies, and rules governing computer, 
software and data file use. 

 
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE  
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Approval 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  
HUMAN RESOURCES:                              Dr. Jim Sutfin, Executive Director  
      Human Resources 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:   _________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

96

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services 
 

District Computers, Software, and Data Files:  
Compliance with Applicable Law and Use of District Computers 5800.1 
 
I. Compliance With License Agreements.  The District will comply with license agreements and/or policy 

statements contained in software packages used by the District.  Questions about compliance with license 
agreements or use of a software package will be resolved through direct negotiation and mutual agreement 
with the software publisher, copyright holder, and/or licensor. 

 
II. Computer Use Rules.  In an effort to prevent violation of copyright laws and illegal software use, the 

following rules will apply: 
 

A. The legal and ethical implications of software use will be taught to personnel and students at all 
levels where there is software use.  

 
B. The building principal, principal's designee, or appropriate supervisor or teacher will be 

responsible for informing District students of the District Computer and Software Policy and 
Rules. 

 
C. When permission is obtained from a copyright holder to use software on a disk-sharing system, 

reasonable efforts will be made to prevent unauthorized copying.  
 
D. Under no circumstances will illegal copies of copyrighted software be made or used on District 

equipment. 
 
E. The District technology department will appoint a Executive Director of Technology or designee 

is authorized to sign software license agreements for District schools.  Each school using licensed 
software shall keep a file containing a signed copy of software agreements. 

 
F. The school principal or principal's designee will be responsible for establishing practices which 

will enforce the District Computer and Software Policy and Rule. 
 
G. The following uses of District computers will be strictly prohibited: 
 

1. Offensive Messages.  The use, display or transmission of sexually explicit images, 
messages, or cartoons; ethnic slurs or racial epithets; or acts of terrorism, assault, or 
threats. 

 
2. Personal, Commercial, and/or Religious Messages.  Use for the purpose of solicitation or 

proselytization for commercial, religious, political, personal or any other non-student-
related activity. 

 
3. Computer Hackers.  Any unauthorized use by students of District computers, including 

improper access of any District computer, which violates federal or state law. 
 

4. Inappropriate Use of E-mail and/or Internet.  The use of the District’s network, internet, 
and e-mail system, for purposes other than designated coursework, or for the 
downloading, viewing, or printing of internet material inappropriately dealing with drugs 
and/or alcohol or dealing with dangerous materials (that could be used in the manufacture 
of bombs and explosive devices) or weapons. 

 
5. Chat Rooms, Blogs on the Internet. Unless called for by the curriculum and regulated by 

District staff, students are not to use “chat rooms”, “social networking sites” or “blogs” 
on the internet.  

97



 
III. Review by District.  District computers, programs, software, and networks are for educational use only, and 

any information carried or contained on District computers is subject to review by the District.  If a student 
uses a non-District computer in a manner which provides access to or affects networks or information 
contained or stored in a District computer, this Rule shall be deemed to be violated. 

 
IV. Prohibited Access.  If a student or a student's parent has a District internet account, a non-District internet 

account, or any other account or program which would enable direct or indirect access to a District 
computer, any access thereto in violation of this Rule or any other District Rule may result in student 
discipline.   If a student uses a computer to gain prohibited access to an account or accounts that the District 
has through a lease, rental agreement, or other contract with a third party including, but not limited to, the 
District's educational service unit, such student will be subject to student discipline under District Rule. 

 
V. Violations.  Violation of any part of this Rule may result in disciplinary action.  In the case of computer 

hackers, this may include the notification of the appropriate federal or state law enforcement agency.   
 
VI. Reservation of Rights.  The District reserves all rights it has under the fair use doctrine of the Copyright 

Acts. 
 
VII. Definitions. 
 

A. Computer Hacker.  Computer hacker shall mean a computer user who attempts to gain 
unauthorized access to proprietary computer systems. 

 
B. Indirect Access to a District Computer.  Indirect access to a District computer shall mean using a 

non-District computer in a manner which results in the user gaining access to a District computer, 
including access to any and all information, records, or other material contained or stored in a 
District computer. 

 
 
Legal Reference:  Copyright Acts          

 Neb. Rev. Stat. § 28-1341 et seq. 
 
 
Related Rules: 5400.1 
  5400.26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rule Approved: June 20, 1994 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  December 20, 1999; February 19, 2001, March 21, 2011 Omaha, NE 

98



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM:    Rule 5800.2 
 
MEETING DATE:     March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Pupil Services 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  District Computers, Software, and Data 

Files: Right of Access 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Reaffirm 
 
BACKGROUND:   The rule is up for periodic review and 

governs the District’s right of access for 
computers, programs, files, etc. 

 
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE  
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Reaffirm 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  
HUMAN RESOURCES:                              Dr. Jim Sutfin, Executive Director  
      Human Resources 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:   _________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

99

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services 
 
District Computers, Software, and Data Files: Right of Access 5800.2 
 
The District reserves the right to have access to all computer programs and files, including any software programs 
and data files and/or creations of any description which reside on District computers and/or storage media. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rule Approved: June 20, 1994  
Revised:  December 20, 1999; February 19, 2001 
Reaffirmed: March 21, 2011 Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha, NE  

100



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM:    Rule 5800.3 
 
MEETING DATE:     March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT:    Pupil Services 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  District Computers, Software, and Data 

Files: Access to Student Records 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Reaffirm 
 
BACKGROUND:   The rule is up for periodic review and 

governs who can have access to student 
records. 

  
 
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE  
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Reaffirm 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  
HUMAN RESOURCES:                              Dr. Jim Sutfin, Executive Director  
      Human Resources 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:   _________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

101

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services 
 
District Computers, Software, and Data Files:  Access to Student Records  5800.3 
 
District students shall not have access to student records unless specifically authorized or permitted by law.  
Electronic files, computer programs, and software containing student records are subject to Policy 5730 and Rule 
5730.1 and the rights of privacy created by federal and state law.   
 
 
Legal Reference:  20 U.S.C. § 1232g 
  Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2,104 
 
 
Related Policy and Rule:  5730 
   5730.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rule Approved: June 20, 1994  
Revised:  December 20, 1999; February 19, 2001       Millard Public Schools 
Reaffirmed: March 21, 2011                                                                                                                          Omaha, NE  

102



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM:     Policy 5470 and Rule 5470.1 
 
MEETING DATE:     March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Police Questioning and Apprehension 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:    Reaffirm 
 
BACKGROUND:  The policy and rule are up for periodic review, and 

state that MPS will comply with investigations and 
apprehensions by law enforcement. 

 
OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 
CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:    Reaffirm 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:     N/A 
 
TIMELINE:      Immediate 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 
 
DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 

103



Pupil Services  
 
Police Questioning and Apprehension 5470 
 
 
School officials shall cooperate with law enforcement officers in pursuance of their official duties. 
 
Law enforcement officers may interview students during school and may remove a pupil from school pursuant to a 
warrant, court order, consent of the custodial parent, or for the purposes of taking the student into custody as 
provided by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy Approved: March 21, 1988  
Revised:  July 6, 1998; October 16, 2000  
Reaffirmed: March 21, 2011 Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha 

104



Pupil Services  
 
Procedures for Law Enforcement Questioning and Apprehension of Students  5470.1 
 
 
I. General Statement.  District personnel shall cooperate and not interfere with law enforcement officers who 

are acting in their official capacity. 
 
II. Contact by Law Enforcement Officers.   
 

A. Non-Exigent Circumstances.  If a law enforcement officer requests to interview a student or to 
remove a student from school when no exigent circumstances are present, the following 
procedures will be followed: 

 
1. When an officer makes contact with a staff member about questioning or apprehending a 

student, the staff member shall refer the officer to the Office of Pupil Services.  
 

2. Pupil Services will inform the officer of the student's location, and will direct the officer 
to take the following steps: 

 
a. Report to the principal's office where the student is located; 

 
b. Present the principal with verification of the officer's identity; 

 
c. Provide the principal with the name of the student to be  

    interviewed or apprehended; and 
 

d. To the extent that it can be released, provide the principal with all pertinent 
information concerning the case. 

 
3. After providing the directions in Section II (A) (2) to the officer, Pupil Services will 

inform the principal that an officer is attempting to make contact with the student, and 
that the officer has been directed to report to the principal. 

 
4. Unless the officer requests otherwise, the principal or principal's designee may be present 

during the questioning of the student. 
 

5. If the officer determines that the student should be removed from school, District staff 
will fully cooperate, and the procedures provided in Section III of this Rule shall be 
followed. 

 
6. Any information or evidence obtained by the District relevant to a matter under 

investigation should be preserved.  The building principal or principal's designee shall be 
responsible for adopting or having in place guidelines for preserving relevant information 
or evidence. 

 
B. Exigent Circumstances.  If a law enforcement officer informs a staff member that exigent 

circumstances exist and/or that an immediate arrest must be made, the District will take whatever 
steps are necessary to enable the officer to immediately apprehend the student.  The staff member 
shall inform Pupil Services of the law enforcement contact as soon as practicable. Pupil Services 
shall inform the student's parent(s) or guardian(s) of the law enforcement contact as soon as 
practicable, unless the case involves suspected child abuse or the officer instructs the District not 
to contact the student's parent(s) or guardian(s) in which case no contact shall be made.  

 

105



III. Apprehension by Law Enforcement Officers.   
 

A. Procedures In Cases of Suspected Child Abuse or When Instructed Not to Contact Parents.  When 
a student is apprehended by a law enforcement officer and removed from school, and when the 
case involves suspected child abuse or the officer instructs that there should be no contact with the 
parent(s) or guardian(s), the following procedures shall be followed: 

 
1. The principal or principal’s designee shall not notify the student’s parent(s) or 

guardian(s) of the apprehension. 
 
2. The principal or principal’s designee shall attempt to ascertain from the officer the place 

where the student is being taken 
 

3. The principal or principal’s designee shall provide the officer with the address and 
telephone number of the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s). 

 
4. The principal or principal’s designee shall inform Pupil Services of the law enforcement 

apprehension as soon as possible. 
 

B. Procedures In All Other Cases.  In all other cases when a student is apprehended by a law 
enforcement officer and removed from school, and which do not involve suspected child abuse or 
the officer does not instruct that there should be no contact with the parent(s) or guardian(s), the 
following procedures shall be followed: 

 
1. The principal or principal’s designee shall attempt to ascertain from the officer the place 

where the student is being taken. 
 
2. The principal or principal’s designee shall provide the officer with the address and 

telephone number of the student’s parent(s) or guardian(s). 
 

3. The principal or principal’s designee shall take immediate steps to notify the student’s 
parent(s) or guardian(s) regarding the apprehension of the student by the officer and the 
place to which the student is reportedly being taken. 

 
4. The principal or principal’s designee shall inform Pupil Services of the law enforcement 

apprehension as soon as possible. 
 
IV. Law Enforcement Request for Student Records.  Student records will be provided only in accordance with 

applicable law and District Policy.  Student records may be released to  law enforcement officers under the 
following circumstances: 

  
A. Pursuant to a warrant, court order, or lawfully issued subpoena provided, however, that the 

District has made a reasonable effort to notify the student and the student's parent(s) or 
guardian(s) prior to compliance. 

  
B. The records contain only directory information. 

 
C. The student's parent(s) or guardian(s) has provided written authorization permitting the release. 

   
D. Personally identifiable information from an education record can be disclosed to appropriate 

parties in connection with an emergency if knowledge of the information is necessary to protect 
the health or safety of the student or other individuals. 

 
 
Legal Reference:  20 U.S.C. §1232g 

106



  34 C.F.R. § 99.1 et seq. 
  Neb. Rev. Stat. §43-248 
  Neb. Rev. Stat § 79-294 
 
Related Rules:   5480.1 
  5710.1  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rule Approved:  
Revised:  July 6, 1998; October 16, 2000   
Reaffirmed: March 21, 2011 Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha, NE  

107



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Rule 6750.1 (Student Fees) 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: Activities and Athletics 
 
TITLE AND BRIEF Rule 6750.1 
DESCRIPTION:   
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval    X      
 
BACKGROUND: Policy 6750 and Rule 6750.1 was last revised on April 

5, 2010, to approve meal price increases for 
implementation during the 2010-11 school year.  The 
current revision is in preparation for the 2011-12 school 
year.  

  
 The board must annually hold a public meeting on the 

District’s student fee policy, after a review of the 
amount of money collected from students pursuant to 
the student fee policy and the use of waivers. 

  
 Review of changes: 

1. Elementary School Fees 
a. Increase field trip maximum fee from $15 to 

$20. 
b. Increase summer school fee from $100 to $115 

(approved in separate board action on December 
6, 2010). 

c. Increase special education summer school fee 
from $95 to $115. 

2. Middle School Fees 
a. Increase interscholastic athletic participation fee 

for sports other than football from $30 to $35. 
b. Clarify that the $25 participation fee for 

intramurals is for each intramural sport. 
c. Increase summer school fee from $100 to $115 

(approved in separate board action on December 
6, 2010). 

d. Increase special education summer school fee 
from $100 to $115. 

e. Increase summer opportunities maximum fee 
from $35 to $150, which includes the summer 
activity fee previously designated to Russell 
Middle School currently approved for up to 
$150. 

108



 
f. Increase required performance attire for swing 

choir and jazz band maximum from $75 to 
$125. 

3. High School Fees 
a. Drama Club fee applicable to all high schools 

rather than just Millard South. 
b. Establish maximum high school intramural fee 

of up to $25 per intramural activity per 
participant. This is a new fee. 

c. Notify board of the fee change for Advanced 
Placement tests from $86 to $87. 

d. Increase summer school fee from $100 to $135 
for three instructional hours per day; from $200 
to $270 for six instructional hours per day; and 
from $60 to $110 for a noncredit mini class 
(approved in separate board action on December 
6, 2010). 

4. Breakfast/Lunch Programs at Elementary, Middle, 
and High Schools increased for the 2011-2012 
school year. Breakfast and lunch price changes were 
presented to and approved by the Board of 
Education as a separate action on March 7, 2011. 
 

OPTIONS AND  
ALTERNATIVES: The District could elect to keep the current fee structure 

in place for any or all of the proposed changes.   
  
RECOMMENDATIONS: Approve the revisions to Rule 6750.1, applicable for the 

2011-12 school year. Summer school fees are applicable 
for the 2011 summer school. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN N/A  
REFERENCE:   
 
IMPLICATIONS OF   
ADOPTION OR REJECTION:  If the revisions to Rule 6750.1 are not approved, some of 

the programs offered may need to alter and/or adjust 
their structures. 

 
TIMELINE: Immediate      
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S):   Craig Whaley  
 
  
SUPERINTENDENT’S  
APPROVAL:     
      
 
 
BOARD ACTION: 

109

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 

 Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment Student Fees       6750.1  

Pursuant to Policy 6750 and Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-2,135 et seq., the District may, and hereby does, require and collect fees or 
other funds from or on behalf of District district students or require District district students to furnish or provide, supplies, 
equipment, or attire as provided for herein below.  

 I. Elementary School Fees:  

A.  Extracurricular Activities *  

1. Field Trips: Students pay a fee of up to $20 $15 (but not to exceed actual cost) per field trip.  

2. All Clubs: Students pay a fee of up to $30 (but not to exceed actual cost of conducting the club activities) 
for membership and activities in each club.  

3. School will not fund competition beyond the state level.  

4. Optional High Ability Learner (HAL) Field Trips: Students pay up to $22 (but not to exceed actual cost) 
per trip.  

5. Choir: Students pay a fee of $15 (but not to exceed actual cost) for screen-printed t-shirt T-shirt.  
 

B.  Special Transportation  

1. §79-241 (option enrollment students): n/a  

2. §79-605 (tuition students): n/a  

3. §79-611 (students within 4 miles and open enrollment students): n/a  
 

C.  Copies of Files/Records  

1.  Students pay 10 cents per page.  

D.  Lost/Damaged Property  

1.  Student pays for repair or replacement cost of property.  

E.  Before/After/School  

1.  Mini-Classes: Students pay up to $60 per class, including materials (6-8 sessions, but not to exceed 
actual cost).  

F.  Summer/Night School *  

1. Regular Education Summer School: Students pay $115 $100 (for 3 instructional hours per day for 12 
days).  

2. Special Education Summer School:  Elementary students pay $115 $95 (for 3.25 hours per day for 12 
days in June).  

3. Building Level Summer School: Students pay up to $3 per hour, including materials.  
 

G.  Breakfast/Lunch Programs *  

1. Students pay for breakfast (i.e., current cost of breakfast $1.30 $1.25).  

2. Students pay for lunch (i.e., current cost of lunch $2.05 $1.95).  
 

110



 
 H.  Non-Specialized Attire  

1. PE: Students provide tennis shoes.  

2. Art: Students provide a paint shirt.  
 

 I.  Musical Instruments (Optional Courses, Non-Extracurricular) *  

1.  Band & Strings:  Students provide their own instruments.  

*  The requirements marked with an asterisk (*) may be waived for students who qualify for free and reduced-price 
lunches.  

II.  Middle School Fees:  

A.  Extracurricular Activities*  

1.  Optional High Ability Learner (HAL) Field Trips: Students pay up to $20 (but not to exceed actual cost) 
per trip – such trips may include the NASA Space Workshop (Des Moines Science Center); Lewis & 
Clark; Writer’s Workshop; Archeology Workshop; City Planning Workshop; as well as other 
opportunities that may arise as a result of programming by area institutions.  

2.  Montessori Immersion Experiences: Students pay up to a total of $400 (but not to exceed actual cost) for 
up to four trips.  

3.  School will not fund competition beyond the state level.  

4.  Sixth Grade Outdoor Education at North Middle School: Students pay up to $50.  

5.  Other optional field trips sanctioned by the building administration: Students pay up to $15 (but not to 
exceed actual cost) for each trip.  

6.  All Clubs: Students pay $0 to $140 (not to exceed the cost of conducting club activities) for membership 
and activities in each club.  

7.  Athletics:  Students pay a $40 participation fee for in football.  Students pay a $35 $30 participation fee 
for interscholastic sports. Students pay a $25 participation fee for each intramural sport sports.  

8.  All Sports: Students provide elastic waist shorts, t-shirt, socks and cold weather attire as needed.  

9.  Football: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  

10.  Volleyball: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  

11.  Basketball: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  

12.  Wrestling: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  

13.  Track: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  

14.  Other Requirements: Students who participate in athletics and/or the Cross Country Club are required to 
have a sports physical (except for intramural basketball/volleyball) and must be covered by health 
insurance.  Health insurance is available through private carriers, or, for those who qualify, the State of 
Nebraska.  

 
B.  Spectator Admission / Transportation  

1.  Students pay an admission fee to activities, not to exceed $10 per person per event. The site administrator 
shall determine the admission charges to each “home” middle school event.  

111



 
C.  Special Transportation  

1. §72-241 (option enrollment students): n/a  

2. §79-605 (tuition students): n/a  

3. §79-611 (students within 4 miles and open enrollment students): Transportation for students whose 
residences are two miles or more from school is provided through First Student Busing at $1.25 per trip 
(with the balance of the cost paid by the District).  

 
D.  Copies of Files/Records  

1.  Students pay 10 cents per page.  

E.  Lost/Damaged Property  

1.  Students pay for repair or replacement of property.  

F.  Summer/Night School *  

1. Regular Summer School: Students pay $115 $100 (for 3 instructional hours per day for 12 days – one 
course); $230 (for 6 instructional hours per day for 12 days – two courses); $60 (for 3 instructional hours 
per day for 4 days).  

2. Special Education Summer School:  Students pay $115 $100 (for 3.75 hours per day for 12 days in June).  

3. Middle School After-School Program:  Students pay up to $30 (for one hour per day for one week); up to 
$60 (for 3 2.5 hours per day for one week).  

4. Summer Opportunities instruction for students – no more than $150 $35 (per opportunity per student).  

5. Russell – summer activity not to exceed $150 per activity 5.    Transition Programs: $10. 

6. Transition Programs: $10         
 

G.  Breakfast/Lunch Programs *  

1. Students pay for breakfast (i.e., current cost of breakfast $1.55 $1.50).  

2. Students pay for lunch (i.e., current cost of lunch $2.25 $2.15). A la carte selections vary in price.  
 

H.  Non-Specialized Attire  

1.  PE: Students provide athletic shoes, elastic waist shorts, t-shirt, and cold weather attire as needed.  

 I.  Musical Instruments (Optional, Non-extracurricular) *  

1.  Band & Strings:  Students provide their own instruments.  

 J.  Music Items (Extracurricular) *  

1.  Swing Choir & Jazz Band:  Students provide their own instruments and attire.  Required 
performance attire will not exceed a cost of $125 $75.  

*  The requirements marked with an asterisk (*) may be waived for students who qualify for free and reduced-price 
lunches.  

112



 
III.  High School Fees:  

A.  Extracurricular Activities *  

1.  Optional Field Trips: Students pay a fee (not to exceed $2,000 or actual cost less revenue raised via 
fundraising activities and/or donations) for all optional field trips approved by the building administration.  

2.  All Clubs: Students pay up to $800 (not to exceed the cost of conducting club activities) for membership 
and/or activities in each club.  

3.  All Activities: Students pay a $60 fee for participation in athletics and activities governed by the 
Nebraska School Activities Association (fee includes an Athletic Admission Ticket for “home” school 
events).  (Journalism, Concert Choir, and Orchestra are excluded.)  

4.  Curriculum Related Activities Note: For curriculum related activities (i.e., Marching Band, DECA, 
VICA, FCCLA, Debate, Forensics, and FCS). , The the school District district does not fund competitive 
activities for students beyond the state level. Fundraising and/or donations must cover the cost of 
competition beyond the state level.  

5.  Drama Club: Students pay $25 for supplies, materials, and services. (Millard South High School).  

6.  Athletics, Cheerleading and Dance: Students are required to have a physical and must be covered by 
health insurance to participate. (Health insurance is available through private carriers, or, for those who 
qualify, the State of Nebraska.)  

7.  All Athletics: Students provide elastic waist shorts, t-shirt, socks, towels and cold weather attire as 
needed.  

8.  Football: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes and practice jersey.  

9.  Volleyball: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  

10.  Basketball: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only and practice jersey.  

11.  Cross Country: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  

12.  Tennis: Students provide tennis racquet and appropriate athletic shoes and pay indoor court fees up to 
$30.00 per season.  

13.  Golf: Students provide golf clubs, golf bag, golf balls, and appropriate athletic shoes and pay range or 
green fees up to $30.00 per season.  

14.  Softball: Students provide softball glove, bat, appropriate athletic shoes, and colored socks.  

15.  Baseball: Students provide baseball glove, bat, appropriate athletic shoes, and colored socks and pay 
indoor facilities fees up to $30 per season.  

16.  Soccer: Students provide shin guards, appropriate athletic shoes, and colored socks and pay indoor 
facilities fees up to $30 per season.  

17.  Wrestling: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes for use indoors only.  

18.  Swimming: Students provide swimsuits, towels, goggles and fins.  

19.  Track: Students provide appropriate athletic shoes.  

20.  Dance Team/Cheerleading: Students purchase selected uniforms and pay fees to a summer camp.  

21.  Swing Choir: Students will purchase required selected performance attire at a cost not to exceed $350 per 
student.  

22.  Intramurals: Students pay intramural fees, not to exceed $25 (per intramural activity, per person), 
for intramural participation. The site administrator shall determine the fee for each intramural 
activity. 

 

113



 
B.  Spectator Admission / Transportation  

1. Students pay admission fees, not to exceed $30 (per event, per person), to school activities.  The site 
administrator shall determine the admission charges to each “home” high school event.  

2. Athletic Admission Ticket: Student pays $40 for admission to all “home” high school athletic events 
(non-tournament competitions).  

 
C.  Post-Secondary Education  

1. Post-Secondary Education Costs: Students pay the cost of tuition and other fees only associated with 
obtaining credits from a postsecondary educational institution if the student chooses to apply for 
postsecondary education credit [i.e., $21.50 per credit hour for Metropolitan Community College (MCC), 
$225 per course at UNO, University of Nebraska – Omaha or $140 per credit hour and registration at 
UNL, University of Nebraska – Lincoln (online classes)].  

2. Advanced Placement Exams Fees: Students pay the cost of each exam (i.e., currently $87 $86 per exam).  

3. International Baccalaureate Exams Fees: Students pay for the cost of testing (i.e., currently approximately 
$650 for two years of testing).  

4. PSAT/NMSQT (Preliminary Scholastic Aptitude Test/National Merit Scholarship Qualifying Test): 
Students pay for the cost of testing (i.e., currently up to $20 per exam).  

 
D.  Special Transportation  

1. §72-241 (option enrollment students): n/a  

2. §79-605 (tuition students): n/a  

3. §79-611 (students within 4 miles and open enrollment students): n/a  
 
E.  Copies of Files/Records  

1. Transcript fee: Students pay $5.  

2. Other Requests:  Students pay10 cents per page.  
 
F.  Lost/Damaged Property  

1.  Student pays for cost of repair or replacement of property.  

G.  Summer/Night School *  

1. Summer School:  Students pay $135 $100 (for 3 instructional hours per day for 24 days, 1 one-semester 
course); $270 $200 (for 6 instructional hours per day for 24 days, 2 one-semester courses); or $110  $60 
(for 3 instructional hours per day for 14 days, noncredit mini class).  

2. Special Education Summer School:  Students pay $135 $100 (for 3.75 hours per day for 14 days in June).  

3. Summer Opportunities instruction for students - no more than $40 (per opportunity per student).  
 

H.  Breakfast/Lunch Programs *  

1. Students pay for breakfast (i.e., current cost of breakfast $1.80 $1.75)  

2. Students pay for lunch (i.e., current cost of lunch - $2.50 $2.40, or $3.00). A la carte selections vary in 
price.  

 

114



 
I.  Parking Permit  

1.  Students wishing to park in school lots during the school day must obtain a parking permit for $30.  

J.  Non-Specialized Attire  

1. PE: Students provide athletic shoes, socks, swimsuit, towel, elastic-waist shorts, t-shirt, and cold weather 
attire as needed.  

2. Lifeguarding: Students provide a CPR mouth guard.  
 

K.  Musical Instruments (Optional, Non-Extracurricular) *  

1.  Band & Strings: Students provide their own instruments.  

L.  Music Items (Extracurricular) *  

1. Pep Band:  Students provide a colored polo shirt (general description by band instructor).  

2. Band: Students may provide black or white leather shoes as generally described by band instructor.  
 

*  The requirements marked with an asterisk (*) may be waived for students who qualify for free and reduced-
price lunches.  

IV.  Student Fee Fund:  

A.  The District shall establish a Student Fee Fund, which shall be a separate fund not funded by tax revenue.  

B.  All money collected from students pursuant to §79-2,127(1) (related to extracurricular activities), §79-
2,127(3) (related to post secondary education costs), and §79-2,127(8) (related to summer school and night 
school) shall be deposited into the Student Fee Fund.  Money expended from such fund shall be for the 
purposes for which it was collected from students.  

V.  Waiver of Fees and/or Requirements:  
 

A.  Students who qualify for free or reduced-priced lunches under the USDA child nutrition programs may 
have fees and requirements waived for the following:  

1. §79-2,133(1) Related to participation in extracurricular activities.  

2. §79-2,133(1) Related to participation in extracurricular activities.  

3. §79-2,131 Related to optional music courses and extracurricular music activities. 
 
B.  Participating in a free-lunch program or a reduced-price lunch program shall not be required for students 

to qualify for a waiver of fees and/or requirements.  

C.  Any qualified student desiring a waiver of fees and/or requirements shall complete and submit a Request for 
Waiver of Fees and/or Requirements form to the building principal (or his/her designee). Once the Request 
is processed, the principal (or his/her designee) shall inform the student as to whether the Request was 
approved or denied.  

Legal References:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-2,125 et seq.  

Related Policies & Rules: 6750  
 
Rule Approved: July 15, 2002                   Millard Public Schools  
Revised: April 21, 2003; July 21, 2003; May 17, 2004; June 6, 2005;         Omaha, Nebraska 
 April 17, 2006; April 23, 2007; April 21, 2008; April 13, 2009; November 2, 2009; 
 February 15, 2010; April 5, 2010; September 7, 2010; March 21, 2011 
 
 

115



 
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment  
 
Student Fees             6750  
 
The District may require and collect fees or other funds from or on behalf of students or require students to furnish or provide 
materials, supplies, equipment, or attire consistent with the Public Elementary and Secondary Student Fee Authorization Act.  
 
The Superintendent (or designee) shall promulgate the rules and/or procedures necessary for implementation of this policy. For 
purposes of Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2,133 and § 79-2,134, such rules and/or procedures, when adopted or approved, shall be 
incorporated in their entirety into this policy by this reference.  
 
Annually, the school board shall hold a public hearing at a regular or special meeting of the Board on a proposed student fee 
policy, following a review of the amount of money collected from students pursuant to, and the use of waivers provided in, the 
student fee policy for the prior school year. The student fee policy shall be adopted by a majority vote of the school board and 
shall be published in the student handbook. The Board shall provide a copy of the student handbook to every student at no cost 
to the student.  
 
Legal References: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-2,125 et seq.  
 
Related Policies & Rules: 6750.1  
 
Policy Adopted: July 15, 2002                   Millard Public Schools 
Reaffirmed: May 17, 2004; June 6, 2005; April 17, 2006; April 21, 2008                       Omaha Nebraska  
April 13, 2009; February 15, 2010  
Revised: April 23, 2007 

116



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Project Lead The Way (PLTW) Agreement 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 21, 2011  
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Educational Services 
 
 
TITLE AND  
BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  Project Lead The Way (PLTW) Agreement  
 
 
ACTION DESIRED: X  Approval 
 
 
OPTIONS: Maintain Status Quo 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  Project Lead The Way (PLTW) is the Industrial Technology program that 
supports an engineering pathway and associated courses for the high schools.  PLTW is recognized as a 
curricular program that emphasizes science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM).  The 
attached agreement between the District and Project Lead The Way, Inc. provides the District the right 
to use the curriculum and the Project Lead The Way name.  Costs associated with the program were 
presented to the Board on January 31, 2011, and are incorporated into program budget curriculum 
adoption requests. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the Project Lead The Way (PLTW) Agreement be 
approved and that the Associate Superintendent for Educational Services be authorized and directed to 
execute any and all documents related to this project.   
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:     None 
 
 
TIMELINE: The Agreement is needed to move curriculum adoption forward. 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S):    Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. for Ed. Services 
     Nancy Johnston, Director of Secondary Education 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:    ______________________                                                    
       (Signature) 
 
BOARD ACTION:  

117

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



PLTW STEM AGREEMENT
 
AGREEMENT by and between Millard Public Schools (the “Entity”), located in Omaha, NE
and PROJECT LEAD THE WAY, INC., a New York charitable not-for-profit corporation
having an address at 21 Corporate Drive, Suite 105, Clifton Park, New York 12065 (“PLTW,
INC.” and, collectively with the Entity, the “parties”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, PLTW, INC. has established a comprehensive program and curricula for
STEM education (the “PLTW Program”) and supports a network of school districts, colleges,
universities, and private sector collaborators (the "PLTW Network"); and

 
WHEREAS, the Entity desires to implement the PLTW Program; which consists of

various curricular programs (the “PLTW Curricular Program(s)”) and
 
WHEREAS, the Entity shall have access to all PLTW Program curricula and annual

updates as well as access to the PLTW electronic communication network, online systematic
assessment and evaluation, training, and additional benefits
 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to work together to maximize the benefit of the PLTW
Program to students by maintaining the quality standards and practices necessary to ensure the
efficacy of the PLTW Program.

 
            NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1.      Registration and Information.    

The Entity has registered online with PLTW, INC. on November 2, 2010 for one or
more schools or sites, and identified which PLTW Curricular Program it wishes to
implement.  The Entity represents that the information contained in the registration
remains accurate as of the date of this Agreement.  In the event that Entity elects to
have additional sites (middle or high school) added, or elects to make other material
changes such as additional PLTW Curricular Programs, Entity must first complete
the necessary data entry and/or information reasonably required by PLTW, INC. 
The registration or site add-on data/information may be amended by PLTW, INC.
from time to time in its discretion. 

2.      PLTW Requirements for Implementation.

The Entity agrees to implement the PLTW Program according to the program and
implementation requirements established by PLTW, INC. (“PLTW STEM Program
Requirements” or “Program Requirements”), which shall include, but not be limited
to, Program Requirements governing sequencing, courses, training, certification or
maintenance of program standards, and other aspects of a successful implementation
of the PLTW Program and PLTW courses by participating entities.  Program
Requirements are available on the PLTW, INC. website and may be modified from
time to time by PLTW, INC. in its reasonable discretion.

Page | 1

PLTW, INC. 2011 - 2012 118



3.      PLTW Curricular Programs.   

The Entity agrees to follow the PLTW curricula and to meet PLTW quality
standards and practices including any concurrent student course requirements as
reasonably established by PLTW, INC. for students to be successful in the PLTW
Program.  Curricula must be taught in its entirety without interruption or any
modification.  Additional information is found in the Program Requirements.

4.      PLTW Software.  

The PLTW curricula are supported by certain software programs that align with the
PLTW curricula to provide students with rigorous and relevant application of skills. 
The Entity must purchase an annual or other available sublicense (or other
applicable rights, collectively herein, the “sublicense”) to the software programs
which are integrated into the PLTW Program courses in that academic year.  The
annual sublicense is subject to limitations established by the owner of the software,
which may include school or site restrictions, as outlined in the Program
Requirements.  If the sublicense is on an annual basis, then the term of the
sublicense is for the then current academic year of this Agreement, after which the
Entity must cease the use of the software unless this Agreement is renewed for
additional terms.  All software shall be subject to the standard end-user license
agreement from the software licensor, a copy of which is included with the software,
and copyright for each software package remains with its owner and is protected by
applicable copyright law.  The Entity agrees to maintain reasonable security
measures to protect the software, and to prohibit its unlawful use.  When not in
actual use, the Entity agrees to secure the software.   Additional information is
found in the Program Requirements.

5.      PLTW Biomedical Sciences Curricular Program Participation Fee.  

The Entity will be assessed an annual participation fee of $2,000 for each school or
site participating in the PLTW Biomedical Sciences Curricular Program, which
shall be due and payable no later than August 1 of each year this Agreement is in
effect.  PLTW, INC. may adjust any participation fees on an annual basis in the sole
discretion of PLTW, INC., provided, however, that PLTW, INC. shall provide
notice of any increases or decreases no later than March 1 of each year of any such
increases or decreases for the following academic year.  Additional information is
found in the Program Requirements.

6.      PLTW Partnership Team.

The objective of the PLTW Partnership Team is to provide optimal support and to
facilitate the operation of the entire PLTW Program, while building community
support and advocacy. By the end of the second year, the Entity shall establish and
operate a PLTW Partnership Team and is responsible for selecting all members.
Additional information is found in the Program Requirements.

Page | 2

PLTW, INC. 2011 - 2012 119



7.      Required Training.

A.    PLTW Teacher Training.  Teachers are required to successfully complete course
specific PLTW Teacher Training for each PLTW course they will instruct. The Entity
will select each teacher for participation in the PLTW Teacher Training program.  It is
the sole responsibility of the Entity to ensure that every teacher meets all Federal, State
and local requirements to teach each respective PLTW course. The Entity shall register
each teacher being selected for training with PLTW, INC. by the date required under
the Program Requirements.  PLTW, INC. reserves the right to accept or reject any
training candidate. Additional information is found in the Program Requirements.    

B.     PLTW Counselor Training. Counselors/Advisors are required to successfully
complete PLTW Counselor Training. Additional information is found in the Program
Requirements. 

8.      Equipment Used in the PLTW Program.  

A.    Equipment.  To assure that the Entity’s school or site facilities properly
support the PLTW Program, and to provide special purchase or license
agreements and other costs savings practices negotiated by PLTW, INC., the
PLTW Purchasing Manual includes details on equipment, supplies and other

items (collectively referred to as “equipment” in this Agreement) that are
required to implement the PLTW Program.  In some instances, it is required
that specific equipment (including software), be used due to curricular
requirements.  Unless specific equipment is required by PLTW, INC., the Entity
may implement the PLTW Program using equipment purchased from vendors
not listed in the PLTW Purchasing Manual, provided such equipment meets or
exceeds program specifications and adequately supports the PLTW Program. 
The Entity shall be responsible for ensuring that equipment will meet or exceed
Program Requirements and adequately support the PLTW Program. Additional
information is found in the Program Requirements. 

B.     Safety.  The Entity is solely responsible for the safe and proper
implementation of the PLTW Program at its sites and schools.  The Entity
hereby covenants and agrees that any facility used to teach the PLTW Program
shall be adequately equipped to operate the equipment safely and properly and
that such facility and any equipment used thereon shall at all times comply with
applicable standards and/or customary practices relating to safety and reasonable
use.  The Entity shall be solely responsible for providing its faculty with
appropriate safety training relating to the implementation of the PLTW
Program. 

9.      Assessment and Evaluation of Results.

PLTW, INC. supports the quality of the PLTW Program through studying and
evaluating the effectiveness of the PLTW Program on an ongoing basis.  These
efforts include the development, validation, and administration of assessments,
examinations, surveys and/or other measurement tools. Further, PLTW INC.
engages in the continuous study of the PLTW Program for the improvement of
instruction that the PLTW Network provides to students.  In support of these efforts,

Page | 3

PLTW, INC. 2011 - 2012 120



Entity agrees to participate in the PLTW systematic assessment and evaluation
process.  The Entity will support full participation in the PLTW online systematic
assessment and evaluation process conducted by PLTW, INC., including online
teacher registration, online student registration, and full participation in various
assessments, examinations, surveys and/or other measurement tools using
technology and other support services provided by PLTW, INC. The Entity and
PLTW, INC. acknowledge and agree that the results of this work are confidential
and shall only be shared in a manner consistent with proper professional practices,
student confidentiality and applicable laws, including FERPA.  The Entity shall be
responsible for implementing annual notifications, record-keeping and other such
privacy requirements relating to these services.  

10.  Delivery of Materials and Communication.  

In order to facilitate the delivery of the PLTW curricula and other PLTW Program
materials to Entity, and to facilitate communication for the PLTW Network, PLTW,
INC. will use various internet applications and systems.  PLTW, INC. shall
determine which systems and applications will be used, in its sole discretion, and
will implement reasonable security measures to safeguard sensitive data.  Schools
will implement appropriate measures to facilitate communication with these
applications and systems.   Additional information is found in the Program
Requirements.

11.  License.

A. Scope.  The Entity acknowledges that PLTW, INC. retains all rights and title to its
marks, curricula, materials and other intellectual property (collectively referred to in this
Agreement as “materials”).  PLTW, INC. grants to the Entity a non-exclusive,
non-transferable license to reproduce and use, to the extent authorized herein, printed or
electronic materials developed and/or used in connection with the PLTW Program, for
the sole purpose of instruction to students at registered schools or sites and appropriate
training for authorized faculty.  Any other use of such materials, including but not
limited to commercial use, shall be strictly prohibited.   

B. Program Identification.  Project Lead The Way, PLTW, Gateway To Technology
and other marks used in the PLTW Program are service/trademarks of PLTW, INC. 
During the term of this Agreement, the Entity shall use the appropriate logos, marks and
other identifying materials on all PLTW Program materials and communications with
faculty, students, officials and community constituents.  PLTW, INC. will supply the
Entity with appropriate instructions and labels relating to such identifying material to
facilitate the proper promotion of the PLTW Program.  Upon termination of this
Agreement, the Entity shall cease using any such identifying material and shall make no
representations linking any of its own educational programs to the PLTW Program
without the prior written consent of PLTW, INC.  All press releases and other public
pronouncements involving the PLTW Program shall be subject to the advance approval
of PLTW, INC. through PLTW, INC.’s designated representative.  The Entity agrees to
reasonably promote and publicize the PLTW Program, and to retain its distinct
character. 

Page | 4

PLTW, INC. 2011 - 2012 121



C. Termination.  The license granted hereunder shall cease upon the earliest to occur of:
(i) the termination of this Agreement; or (ii) PLTW, INC. providing sixty (60) days
written notice to the Entity of its election to revoke the license.  Upon termination of the
license all material shall cease to be used and, at the election of PLTW, INC., all
materials, including any reproductions thereof, shall be immediately returned to PLTW,
INC., and in no event later than fifteen (15) days after the effective date of termination.

12.  Representations and Warranties of the Entity.

The Entity hereby makes the following representations and warranties: (a) This
Agreement has been duly approved by the governing authority of the Entity, and the
person executing this Agreement on behalf of the Entity has been duly authorized to
so act by such Entity; (b) This Agreement is a legally binding agreement whose
rights and obligations run only between the Entity and PLTW, INC. and the Entity’s
execution of this Agreement does not create rights in any other party; and (c) The
terms of this Agreement do not violate or conflict with the Entity’s charter or any
other of its rules of governance, the laws of the Entity’s State or any subdivision
thereof, or any other agreement to which the Entity is a party.

13.  Default.

A. Material Breach and Cure Period.  Upon a material breach of this Agreement by either
party which is not cured within fifteen (15) days after written notice is mailed to the
defaulting party, this Agreement shall terminate effective upon the completion of the
then-current academic year.

B. Non-payment or Failure to Implement Program.  If the Entity fails to make prompt
payment of the participation fee or to implement the PLTW Program for the academic
year immediately following the date of this Agreement, then this Agreement may
immediately terminate, at the option of PLTW, INC.  In the event that Entity implements
one or more courses, but fails to timely and properly implement the courses required for
the Entity's PLTW Curricular Program(s), then, this Agreement may immediately
terminate, at the option of PLTW, INC. 

C. Other Remedies.  In addition to the right to terminate the Agreement upon a breach
thereof, the parties shall also have the right to exercise all of their respective remedies,
both legal and equitable, as a result of the breach.

14.  Term: Annual Renewal of Agreement.

The initial term of this Agreement shall begin as of the date of signing and shall end
on June 30th of the following year; this Agreement shall be automatically renewed
for additional contract years (July 1 – June 30) unless a party terminates the
Agreement by notice to the other party in writing no later than April 1 preceding the
commencement of the next Contract Year.

Page | 5

PLTW, INC. 2011 - 2012 122



15.  Protection of Intellectual Property.

The Entity agrees to adhere to any and all restrictions in connection with equipment,
software and other intellectual property purchase, lease/sublease, and/or
license/sublicense agreements between PLTW, INC. and software producers,
assessment providers or other such entities and to take proactive measures to protect
intellectual property purchased, leased/subleased and/or licensed/sublicensed under
such agreements, as shall be requested by PLTW, INC. or the owner of the
intellectual property.  Upon a termination of this Agreement, the Entity shall return
all software or other intellectual property provided to them pursuant to this
Agreement or through special agreements relating to the Entity’s participation in the

PLTW Program.  PLTW, INC. assumes no liability for the non-performance of
the software or other intellectual property but will provide reasonable assistance to
resolve non-performance issues with the owner of the software or other intellectual
property.  The Entity agrees that if it materially breaches these restrictions, its right
to use such software or other intellectual property will be terminated and all software
or other intellectual property shall be immediately returned to PLTW, INC. or the
owner.  The Entity shall solely be responsible for any remedies sought by the owner
relating to the Entity’s breach of these provisions, and PLTW, INC. shall not be
liable in any way for such breach.

16.  Indemnification.

To the extent permitted by law, the Entity hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and
hold harmless PLTW, INC. from and against, and in respect to, any and all losses,
expenses, costs, obligations, liabilities and damages, including interest, penalties and
reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses, that PLTW, INC. may incur as a result of
any negligent or willful act of the Entity or any of its agents or employees or the
failure by such Entity to perform any of its representations, warranties,
commitments, or covenants under this Agreement.

17.  Miscellaneous Provisions.  

A. Assignment.  The Entity is prohibited from assigning to or in any other way enabling
any of its rights under this Agreement to inure to any third party without the prior written
consent of PLTW, INC.  This prohibition on assignment shall be a material term of this
Agreement and any violation of this Section shall be material breach of this Agreement,
which shall allow PLTW, INC. to terminate this Agreement.

B. Notices.  Any notice or other communication required or permitted under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sent by registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested, or by overnight delivery, as follows:  

If to the Entity: If to PLTW, INC.:

Millard Public Schools

5606 S 147 St.

Omaha, NE

58137 

Project Lead The Way, Inc.

Attn:  STEM Agreements

21 Corporate Drive, Suite 105

Clifton Park, NY 12065

ph: 877-335-7589 

Page | 6

PLTW, INC. 2011 - 2012 123



C. Confidentiality.  Except to the extent required by applicable law, the parties to this
Agreement understand and agree that the contents of this final Agreement, and the
discussions and negotiations between the parties resulting in this final Agreement, shall
be maintained as confidential and shall not be disclosed to any third party.  

D. Benefit.  This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the
parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

E. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including any instruments of agreements attached
hereto as exhibits or incorporated herein by reference, contains the entire understanding
of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement supersedes all
prior agreements and understandings between the parties with respect to such subject
matter.

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have each executed this Agreement on the dates
indicated below.

 Millard Public Schools

Date:  By:  

 

Entity Superintendent or School Board

President/Chairperson, or their legally

authorized designee

Name:

 

 

Title:

 

 

  

 Project Lead The Way, Inc. 

Date:  By:  

 

Shannon Kete, Acting President and Chief

Operating Officer

 

Project Lead The Way, Inc

Attn: STEM Agreements

21 Corporate Drive, Suite 105

Clifton Park, NY 12065

ph: 877-335-7589 

Page | 7

PLTW, INC. 2011 - 2012 124



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Cather Reroof Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Cather Reroof Project 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously discussed with the board. 
 
 More information is available in the architect’s letter and bid tab attached. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Cather Elementary Reroofing Project 

Phase II of II be awarded to Prairie Construction in the amount of $319,000 (with 
such amount including the base bid and both alternates) and that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any 
and all documents related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Kelly Rosburg (BVH Architects) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent 

(General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

125

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



126



127



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for MSHS Reroof Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for MSHS Reroof Project 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously discussed with the board. 
 
 More information is available in the architect’s letter and bid tab attached. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Millard South High School Reroofing 

Project Phase II be awarded to McKinnis Roofing and Sheet Metal, Inc. in the 
amount of $341,433 and that the associate superintendent for general 
administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related 
to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Kelly Rosburg (BVH Architects) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent 

(General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

128

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



129



130



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Disney Soffit and Fascia Replacement Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Disney Soffit and Fascia Replacement Project 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously discussed with the board. 
 
 More information is available in the architect’s letter and bid tab attached. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Disney Soffit and Fascia Replacement 

Project be awarded to Rife Construction in the amount of $46,585 and that the 
associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to 
execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Bill Cramer (The Schemmer Associates) and Ken Fossen, Associate 

Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

131

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



132



133



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Black Elk Flooring Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Black Elk Flooring Project 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously discussed with the board. 
 
 More information is available in the architect’s letter and bid tab attached. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Black Elk Flooring Project be awarded 

to Floors, Inc. in the amount of $114,289 (with such amount including the base bid 
only) and that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized 
and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Nelson Link (BCDM Architects) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent 

(General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

134

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



135



136



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Norris Flooring Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Norris Flooring Project 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously discussed with the board. 
 
 More information is available in the architect’s letter and bid tab attached. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Norris Flooring Project be awarded to 

Floors, Inc. in the amount of $84,132 (with such amount including the base bid 
only) and that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized 
and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Nelson Link (BCDM Architects) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent 

(General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

137

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



138



139



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Ezra Fabric Removal Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Ezra Fabric Removal Project 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously discussed with the board. 
 
 More information is available in the architect’s letter and bid tab attached. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Ezra Fabric Removal Project be 

awarded to Rife Construction in the amount of $42,998 and that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any 
and all documents related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Bill Cramer (The Schemmer Associates) and Ken Fossen, Associate 

Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

140

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



141



142



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for MNHS Reroof Project 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for MNHS Reroof Project 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This is an unexpected “emergency” project that was added to the summer projects 

previously discussed with the board. 
 
 More information is available in the architect’s letter and bid tab attached. 
 
  
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Millard North High School Reroofing 

Project be awarded to R. L. Craft of Omaha in the amount of $210,000 and that the 
associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to 
execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Kelly Rosburg (BVH Architects) and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent 

(General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL: __________________________ 

143

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



144



145



AGENDA ITEM:  Administrator Recommended for Hire 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 21, 2011 
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
 
TITLE & DESCRIPTION:  Principal at Cody Elementary School 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The position was advertised on Millard’s job posting website and in the Omaha 

World Herald.  Seven internal and twenty external applications were received. The 
applications were reviewed by Dr. Jim Sutfin and Dr. Keith Lutz.  Three internal 
and four external candidates were interviewed for the position. The interview team 
included Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, Angelo Passarelli, Dr. Mark Feldhausen, 
Terry Houlton, Andy DeFreece, Julie Bergstrom, Lori Bartels, Kevin Chick, Jenny 
Bahe, Maureen Kuch, Brenda Ridder, Brenda Graumann, Rick Jacobi, Cheryl 
Gerace, Suzi Dulant, Stacy Jolley, Jeanine Beaudin, Carrie Swift, Trudy Abboud, 
Cheryl Decker, Rhonda Bishop, Karen Benson, Sarah Weidner, LeeAnna Espinoza, 
and Stacey Floresch. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The superintendent’s recommendation is approval of Ryan D. Saunders for 

Elementary Principal of William Cody Elementary School.  Ryan is currently an 
Assistant Principal at Ackerman Elementary School (2010-present). Previously, Mr. 
Saunders was an Assistant Principal at Neihardt Elementary School (2007-2010). 

 
EDUCATION:  BA of Arts in Elementary Education – University of Nebraska, Kearney (1999)  
  MA of Education in Elementary Education/Administration – University of 

Nebraska, Omaha (2005) 
   
 
 
OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
 
PERSON RECOMMENDING:  Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: 

146

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA ITEM:  Administrator Recommended for Hire 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 21, 2011 
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
 
TITLE & DESCRIPTION:  Principal at Harvey Oaks Elementary School 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The position was advertised on Millard’s job posting website and in the Omaha 

World Herald.  Seven internal and twenty external applications were received. The 
applications were reviewed by Dr. Jim Sutfin and Dr. Keith Lutz.  Three internal 
and four external candidates were interviewed for the position. The interview team 
included Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, Angelo Passarelli, Dr. Mark Feldhausen, 
Terry Houlton, Andy DeFreece, Julie Bergstrom, Lori Bartels, Kevin Chick, Jenny 
Bahe, Maureen Kuch, Brenda Ridder, Brenda Graumann, Rick Jacobi, Cheryl 
Gerace, Suzi Dulant, Stacy Jolley, Jeanine Beaudin, Carrie Swift, Trudy Abboud, 
Cheryl Decker, Rhonda Bishop, Karen Benson, Sarah Weidner, LeeAnna Espinoza, 
and Stacey Floresch. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The superintendent’s recommendation is approval of Dawn M. Marten for 

Elementary Principal of Harvey Oaks Elementary School.  She is currently an 
Assistant Principal at Neihardt Elementary School (2010-present). Previously, Mrs. 
Marten was an Assistant Principal at Ackerman Elementary (2009-2010), an MEP 
Staff Development Facilitator (2006-2009), and an elementary classroom teacher at 
Ezra Millard and J. Sterling Morton Schools (2000-2006). 

 
 
Education:  BA of Science in Education – University of Nebraska, Omaha (2000)  
  MA of Science in Education – University of Nebraska, Omaha (2001)  
  MA in Educational Administration – University of Nebraska, Omaha (2005) 
   
 
 
OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
 
PERSON RECOMMENDING:  Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: 

147

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: March 21, 2011 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel item:  (1) Hires; (2) Resignations 
 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________________ 

148

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



March 21, 2011 
 

 
 

RESIGNATIONS 
 
 
Recommend:  The following resignation be accepted: 
 

1. Deborah Bope – Counselor at Black Elk and Rohwer Elementary Schools. Resigning at 
the end of the 2010-2011 school year for further education. 

2. Robin Breedlove – Counselor (.5) at Millard North High School. Resigning at the end of 
the 2010-2011 school year because of family responsibilities. 

3. Heidi Berry – Spanish teacher at Millard North High School. Resigning at the end of the 
2010-2011 school year because of family responsibilities. 

4. Jason C. Gosnell – Counselor at Millard West High School. Resigning at the end of the 
2010-2011 school year to take a position in another school district.  

5. Antony Ritton – Grade 3 teacher at Aldrich Elementary School. Relocating at the end of 
the 2010-2011 school year. 

149



March 21, 2011 
 

 
TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 
 
 
Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2011/2012 school year: 
 

1. Denise M. Kully – MA – College of St. Mary.  Grade 6, Language Arts teacher at Russell 
Middle School for the 2011-2012 school year.   

2. Jennifer M. Gilin – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Grade 1 teacher at Upchurch 
Elementary School for the 2011-2012 school year.  Previous Experience: CADRE teacher, 
Millard Public Schools (2010-2011)  

3. Elizabeth A. Kocis – Education Specialist – University of Iowa. School Psychologist - 
Short-Term Contract for the 2011-2012 school year. Previous Experience: Millard Public 
Schools (2010-current); Papillion-LaVista Schools (1995-2003) 

4. Jacqueline A. Sommer – BA – University of Nebraska, Kearney. Montessori 
Teacher at Montclair Elementary School for the 2011-2012 school year. 

5. Jennifer J. Nicholson – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Grade 5 teacher at Holling 
Heights Elementary School for the 2011-2012 school year. Previous Experience: CADRE 
teacher, Millard Public Schools (2010-2011)  

6. Nicholas J. Weaver – Peru State College. Grade 5 teacher at Holling Heights Elementary 
School for the 2011-2012 school year.  Previous Experience: Short-Term Contract, Millard 
Public Schools (2010-2011) 

7. Stephanie D. Milligan – MA – University of Nebraska-Omaha. Language Arts teacher at 
Kiewit Middle School for the 2011-2012 school year. Previous Experience: CADRE 
teacher, Millard Public Schools (2010-2011) 

8. Molly M. Tessin – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Grade 4 teacher at Hitchcock 
Elementary School for the 2011-2012 school year.  Previous Experience: CADRE teacher, 
Millard Public Schools (2010-2011)  

9. Chad A. Mustard – BA – University of North Dakota.  Math teacher at Millard West High 
School for the 2011-2012 school year.  Previous Experience: Bellevue West High School 
(2009-current) 
 
 

150



 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Legislative Update 
 
MEETING DATE: March 21, 2011 
 
DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Legislative Update for the 102nd Legislature 1st session. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL          DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY   XX      
 
The legislative summary is attached.   
 
 

   
 
 
 
   
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Implemented Strategies and Superintendent’s Goals 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON:  Angelo Passarelli 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  
        (Signature) 
 
 

151

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Legislative Update 
March 21, 2011 
 
K-12 Funding  
LB 235 is Senator Adams priority bill and will include changes to TEEOSA to get to the state 
aid number of 810 million, the Governor’s proposal. 
 
Commission of Industrial Relations 
Senator Lathrop is working on a CIR bill that will be amended into LB 397.  He thinks the bill 
will be out soon.     
 
Bills of Interest 
There are several bills that change the school aid formula to reflect the reductions they 
intend to make.  
LB 235 reduces state aid with a goal of reaching 838 million in funding. 
 
LB 364 reduces allowances for student growth, instructional time and advanced teaching 
degrees.  We oppose this bill. 
 
Learning Community Bills 
LB 463 changes provisions relating to truancy 
LB 548 changes the governance structure of the Learning Community.   
LB 558 changes the provisions relating to focus schools 
LB 615 changes provisions relating to access to student records 
LB 636 changes provisions relating to access to student records 
 
A listing of bills we are tracking is attached.   
 
National News and Advocacy Issues 
82% of schools could get a failing grade thanks to NCLB,  
Education Secretary Arne Duncan said Wednesday that 82% of the country's schools soon 
could be considered failing if the No Child Left Behind law is not changed. The administration 
is seeking to relax some accountability measures in the law. "The law has created dozens of 
ways for schools to fail and very few ways to help them succeed," Duncan said. "We should 
get out of the business of labeling schools as failures and create a new law that is fair and 
flexible and focused on the schools and students most at risk." 
 
Stopgap Spending Bill Severs Array of Education Programs  
Ed Week.org, March 3 
BETHESDA, Md. -- The stopgap federal spending bill President Barack Obama signed into law 

152



almost certainly spells the end of federal funding for more than a dozen education programs.  
The list includes: National Writing Project - $25.6 million; Teach for America - $18 million; 
Reading is Fundamental - $24.8 million; National Board for Professional Teaching Standards - 
$10.7 million; New Leaders for New Schools - $5 million; Arts in Education - $40 million; We 
the People - $21.6 million; Close Up fellowships - $1.9 million; Exchanges With Historic 
Whaling and Trading Partners - $8.6 million; Thurgood Marshall Legal Educational Opportunity 
program - $3 million; B.J. Stupak Olympic Scholarships - nearly $1 million.  
 
Cuts to SPED and Title I Programs 
In its initial form, H.R. 1 would impose a $700 million cut to Title I grants, a $558 million dollar 
cut to special education, and additional reductions to early education and afterschool 
programs. However, the House voted in favor of an amendment offered by Rep. Cathy 
McMorris Rodgers (R-WA) that would restore the $558 million to special education. The offset 
for restoring this funding would mean a $500 million cut to Teacher Quality state grants and a 
$336.6 million cut to Title I school improvement grants.  

153



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB18 Adams Provide for distribution of allocations from the federal Education Jobs Fund Education
01/18/11
1:30 p.m. 
Room 1525

01/19/11 01/21/11 01/31/11 Passed 
02-04-11
Signed by the 
Governor 
02/10/11

Support

LB19 McCoy Prohibit the use of certain drug substances as prescribed

Adds to Schedule 1 of the controlled substances act Any material, compound, mixture, or preparation 
containing any detectable quantity of synthetically produced cannabinoids. Makes such substances 
unlawful to posses.  Punishment for such offense shall be equal to those of possession of marijuana. 

Judiciary
01/19/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

01/21/11 02/15/11 02/10/11 Passed w/E
02/16/11
Signed by the 
Governor 
02/23/11

Support

LB33 Louden Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land

Beginning January 1, 2012 Ag and horticultural land shall be valued at 70 rather than 75% of its actual 
value.  Changes acceptable range for valuation from 69-75% to 64-70% of actual value.  Changes state aid 
value of ag and horticultural land to 67 rather than 72%.  

Revenue
01/21/11 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB50 Krist Adopt the Elementary and Secondary Educational Opportunity Act and provide for income tax credits

Provides income tax credits for contributions to entities that provide scholarships to children attending 
privately operated elementary or secondary schools.  Scholarships can only be granted to kids of certain 
incomes. For grades K-8, the household income eligibility is three times the standard for free or reduced 
price lunch; for grades 9-12 the eligibility is increased to four times.

Revenue
02/16/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

Telephone:  402.434.3399 | Fax:  402.434.3390

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY

102nd Legislature - First Session - 2011

530 South 13th Street | Suite 110 | Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

154



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB53 Krist Change free transportation provisions relating to learning community students

Provides that Learning Community school districts must provide free transportation to students residing in 
the learning community and attending school in the school district if the student is transferring pursuant to 
the open enrollment provisions of section 79-2110 and either (i) is a
student who contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment at the school building to which he or 
she attends, transfers and lives more than one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, or (ii) is a 
student attending a focus school or program and lives more than one mile from the school building housing 
the focus school or program.

Deletes eligibility for free and reduced lunch kids who don't affect diversity of building.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB58 Adams Provide for a study of dual-enrollment courses and career academies

Provides that the Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education should study dual enrollment 
courses and report to the Legislature before December 15, 2011.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

Support

LB84 Fischer

FISCHER 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Adopt the Build Nebraska Act and authorize bonds for the highway system

• The bill establishes the Build Nebraska Act and Creates the State Highway Capitol Improvement Fund for 
surface transportation projects, providing for security, investment, and repayment of bonds.  
• Funding:  ½ cent of existing sales tax for 20 years,  raising $125 million annually         
• Effective:  2013
• Funds shall be used as follows:

$60 million will be used to pay for surface transportation projects of the
                 highest priority of NDOR                
$20 million for cities and counties
$15 million for completion of expressway system
$25 million for used for payment of bonds and interest, bonding limit not to
            exceed $500 million   (Bonds must be issued between 2013 and 2018.) 

Revenue
02/10/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1524

02/17/11 Oppose

LB123 Heidemann Provide for disciplinary actions and policies relating to cyber-bullying

Provides that cyber-bullying shall constitute, in some cases, grounds for long-term suspension, expulsion, 
or mandatory reassignment.  Cyber-bullying means any ongoing use of electronic mail, text messaging, 
social networking web sites, or any other form of electronic communication, on or off of school grounds, 
with the intention of causing harm or serious emotional distress to students or school personnel. Requires 
school districts to develop policies concerning cyber-bullying prevention and education.

Education
01/18/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

155



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB125 Avery Create the Children's Health Advisory Committee

To create and provide duties for the Children's Health Advisory Committee, to provide duties for the chief 
executive officer of the Department of Health and Human Services and the Commissioner of Education to 
provide for and require schools to implement nutrition and physical activity standards.

Health and 
Human Services
02/10/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

Oppose

LB130 Heidemann Provide for adjustment of formula need in calculation of state aid to schools

Provides that for school fiscal years 2011-12 and 2012-13, if the total amount of TEEOSA Aid as 
determined by the department to be distributed to school districts is different than the total amount of funds 
appropriated for distribution, the department shall proportionally adjust each district's formula need as 
calculated pursuant to section 12 79-1007.11 so that the total amount of aid determined is equal to the 
amount of funds appropriated.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
02/17/11

Oppose

LB143 Haar Require public education institutions to file certain contracts of employment with the Nebraska 
Accountability and Disclosure Commission

Provides that public schools shall file with the Accountability and Disclosure Commission a copy of each 
contract of employment for officials of the institution with the title or function of president, vice president, 
chancellor, superintendent, assistant superintendent, chief executive officer, or chief financial officer or any 
other senior administrative personnel under contract with the institution performing similar functions. The 
contract of employment shall include the salary and benefit package provided to the official and shall 
identify each benefit provided and its source and value.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/17/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Killed 
03/09/11

Oppose

LB145 Haar Provide for school transportation safety committees

Provides for creation of school transportation safety committees and submission of child access routing 
plans for each school within a school district.  Further provides for committee procedures when a new 
school is proposed.  

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB148 Avery Exclude lobbying expenses from the definition of general fund operating expenditures for state aid to 
education purposes

The one-liner says it all.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB149 Avery Adopt the Blind Persons Literacy Rights and Education Act

Provides that a teacher employed by or under contract with a school district, educational service unit, other 
education agency, or the State Department of Education who teaches blind or visually impaired children 
shall demonstrate competence in reading and writing Braille. Provides how such demonstration may be 
made.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

156



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB173 Avery Prohibit natural resources district board members from running for or holding more than one office

No person serving in a natural resource district shall simultaneously hold another high elective office.
  

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/02/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Monitor ?

LB189 Council Adopt the Criminal Offender Employment Act

On an initial application for public employment, there shall be no question or checkbox for the applicant 
regarding the applicant's criminal record. Any criminal record of the applicant shall not operate as an 
automatic bar to otherwise qualified applicants in obtaining public employment and shall only be taken into 
consideration after the applicant has been selected as a finalist for employment. Certain criminal records 
shall not be used in connection with application for public employment.

Business and 
Labor
01/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Oppose

LB192 Council Require school districts to offer instruction in sexual health education

Provides that beginning with school year 2012-13, each school district must offer instruction in sexual 
health education with a curriculum pursuant to listed criteria in the bill and State Board of Education 
regulations.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB204 Council

COUNCIL 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Require blood-lead testing prior to enrollment in school

Provides that school districts shall require students to have undergone lead testing after the age of 18 
months and before the age of 4 years.  Provides for testing and notification procedures.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/08/11 Oppose

LB235 Adams

ADAMS PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions relating to state aid to schools

Reduces the base limitation rate for school district to 0.5% for 2011-12 and 2012-13. Elements of the 
budget lids would be permanently modified. Modifications that would reduce the total amount of state aid: 
The cost growth factor would be permanently reduced by eliminating the factor that is added on to the two 
years of basic allowable growth rates in the calculation. The upper and lower ends of the range for need 
stabilization would be reduced by 5% for 2011-12. The threshold for the averaging adjustment would also 
be reduced by 5% for 2011-12 and the additional 0.5% that is used in the calculation of the threshold would 
be permanently eliminated to reflect the change in the cost growth factor. The local effort rate would be 
increased from $1.00 to $1.025 for 2011-12 and 2012-13. The allocated income tax reduction would be 
extended for 2011-12 and 2012-13 and would be increased to $21 million. NCSA Summary.

It is istimated that LB235 would decrease the amount of state aid distributed in FY2011-12 by $140.9 
million and the amount distributed in FY2012-13 by $172.8 million of general funds

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

157



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB236 Adams Change provisions relating to state aid to schools

Reduces the base limitation rate for school district to 0% for 2011-12 and 2012-13, which would affect 
budget lids and several elements of the aid formula.  Elements of the budget lids would be permanently 
modified.  Modifications reducing total amount of state aid:  The cost growth factor would be permanently 
reduced by eliminating the factor that is added on to the two years of basic allowable growth rates in the 
calculation.  Need stabilization and the averaging adjustment would be eliminated beginning with the 2011-
12 calculation of aid.  The local effort rate would be increased from $1.00 to $1.025 for 2011-12 and 2012-
13.  The allocated income tax reduction would be extended for 2011-12 and 2012-13 and would be 
increased to $21 million. NCSA Summary.

It is estimated that LB236 would decrease the amount of state aid distributed in FY2011-12 by $184.8 
million and the amount distributed in FY2012-13 by $231.9 million of general funds.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB247 Pahls Adopt the Classrooms First Act

Requires 65% or more of each district’s total operating expenditures on direct classroom instruction 
beginning in 2012-13.  Defines what constitutes “direct classroom instruction”. Requires Commissioner of 
Education to send an “intervention team” to any district failing to comply, in order to help the school board 
and administration meet the requirements of the legislation.  Beginning in 2013-14, failure to comply for 
three consecutive years would mean loss of accreditation. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB260 Lathrop Adopt the Concussion Awareness Act

Provides that after a concussion or brain injury is sustained or suspected to have been sustained, schools are 
to prohibit athletes from playing or practicing again until they have been cleared by a health care 
professional.  Requires schools to make available training to recognize the symptoms of a concussion or 
brain injury and send out information regarding concussion and brain injury information on annual basis to 
student athletes.  Cities, villages, businesses, and non-profits who organize youth athletic activities must 
also provide information on concussions and brain injuries to participants, make available training, and 
prohibit an athlete from resuming playing or practicing after a  concussion or brain injury is sustained or 
suspected to have been sustained until cleared by a health care professional.

Health and 
Human Services
01/27/11 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

02/15/11 03/09/11 Support

LB266 Sullivan Change the Open Meetings Act relating to closed sessions

Provides that a public body may go into closed session for the evaluation of the job performance of a 
nonelected official or employee if such person has not requested a public meeting.  Current statute provides 
the body may go into closed session for evaluation of the job performance of a person when necessary to 
prevent needless injury to the reputation of a person and if such person has not requested a public meeting.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/26/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Support

158



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB273 Dubas Change the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act to provide for converted contracts and 
converted contract option students

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB283 Haar

HAAR PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Provide school boards with tax levy and bond authority relating to energy efficiency projects

Permits tax levy authority and bond authority for energy efficiency projects under the existing 
environmental hazard/accessibility barrier abatement provisions of law.  NCSA Summary.  

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/09/11 Support

LB287 Adams Change provisions relating to summer school and early childhood summer sessions

Expands the existing TEEOSA summer school allowance for students enrolled in a summer session of an 
early childhood education program.  Changes the calculation of the allowance.  Further provides that each 
school district will receive an additional six-tenths of a summer school student unit for each early childhood 
education student unit attributed to a free lunch and free milk. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB364 Fischer Change provisions relating to calculation of state aid to schools

Revises state aid formula to eliminate the instructional time allowance, the teacher education allowance, 
and the student growth adjustment for computation of state aid in school fiscal year 2011-12 and beyond.  
Although the effect on individual school districts is not yet known, Senator Fischer has indicated her intent 
was to reduce the total liability for state aid to schools.  NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB381 Speaker Flood Change provisions relating to educational service units, withdraw from the Compact for Education, and 
eliminate a student achievement coordinator

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor? 

159



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB382 Nordquist

NE RETIREMENT 
SYSTEMS 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change deposit and contribution rates for certain retirement systems

Requires School Retirement Fund retirement contributions from employees of 9.28% of compensation from 
9/2011 through 8/2013 and contributions of 8.28% from 9/2013 through 8/2014.  The most recent required 
contribution was 8.28%.  From 7/2011 until 7/2013, requires retirement contributions paid by Nebraska 
State Patrol officers or paid on the officer’s behalf of 19%of monthly compensation. From 2013 onward, 
requires 16% contribution.  Provides for assessments against the appropriation of the Nebraska State Patrol 
in those amounts for those periods.  

NCSA:  Proposes to change the employee contribution rate for the School Employees Plan from 8.28% to 
9.28% effective September 1, 2011.  The employer rate (equal to 101% of the employee rate) would 
increase from 8.36% to 9.37%.  It is important to note that the bill was introduced on behalf of the 
Governor and that, while the proposal calls for a full percentage increase, the Retirement Committee is not 
bound to that idea.  It is likely that LB 382 will be advanced from committee this session, but it may not 
have to include a full percent increase.  Talks are under way to examine, for instance, a half percent 
increase or some figure less than a full percent.  The underlying objective is to address the immediate 
actuarial shortfall and to be cognizant of the increased burden placed on employees as well as employers.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor ?

LB397 Lathrop

BUSINESS AND 
LABOR PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Redefine a term in the Industrial Relations Act

Clarifies that the reference to employer in the definition of employee refers to the definition of employer 
provided by the Industrial Relations Act.  Shell bill for CIR.

See LB 619, LB 664, LR29CA

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor ?

LB430 Cornett Change property tax levy limitations

Provides that property tax levies for “bonds as defined in section 10-134” rather than “bonded 
indebtedness” are not subject to the local government levy limits established under section 77-3442.  
Resolves a dispute between State Auditor’s office and certain SIDs.    

ENDC legislation

Revenue
02/02/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

03/04/11 Support

LB439 Heidemann Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land for school tax purposes

Provides that for school district taxation purposes, agricultural and horticultural land shall be valued at 65% 
of its actual value, and greenland 65% of its special value.  Provides that the acceptable range of TERC 
variation for such land for school district taxation purposes is 59% to 65% of actual value.  For purposes of 
TEEOSA, provides that agricultural and horticultural land has a state aid value of 62% of actual value and 
greenland has a state aid value of 62% of the special valuation. NCSA summary.  

Revenue
03/03/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

160



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB440 Heidemann Change adjusted-valuation provisions within the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act

Provides for a gradual reduction (1% per year) in agricultural and horticultural land state aid value and 
greenland state aid value from the current 72% to 62% of actual value over the course of the next 10 years.  
The state aid value is used to calculate TEEOSA aid. NCSA Summary.

Education
02/01/11 at 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
2/17/2011

Oppose

LB446 Adams Change duties and funding provisions relating to educational service units

Provides that an ESU may consist of a single school district if that district is a Class IV or Class V district.  
Provides that only an ESU with four or members or that is composed of a single Class IV or V school 
district may levy a tax.  Provides for the calculation of the adjusted students number for a single member 
ESU.  Provides that it is the intent of the legislature that each multidistrict ESU use 5% of its funding for 
core services and technology infrastructure for cooperative projects between member school districts and 
5% for core services and technology infrastructure statewide projects.  

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB463 Ashford

JUDICIARY 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change juvenile penalty, records, service plan, probation sanctions, and truancy provisions

Expands access to sealed records to law enforcement agency if a person whose record has been sealed 
applies for employment with the law enforcement agency. All school districts shall have a policy that 
outlines how the school district and the county attorney will handle cases in which excessive absences are 
due to documented serious illness. If a child is absent more than ten days per year or the hourly equivalent 
or is suspended from school for any reason, the school district shall inform and request from juvenile 
probation officers as defined in section 29-2246, the Department of Health and Human Services and any 
private entity providing services to children and families pursuant to a contract with the department, and 
the Nebraska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice any information relating to such child 
available to the officers, department, entities, and commission. The officers, department, entities, and 
commission shall provide any such information in their records to the school district. Includes reducing 
truancy in the list of duties of the learning community.  Redefines truancy as students who are absent for 
more than ten days each year.  

Judiciary
02/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Oppose

161



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB486 Louden Change provisions relating to compensation and contributions under the School Employees Retirement Act

Sunsets the 7% rule effective June 30, 2012.  Thereafter, any amount of annual salary increase exceeding 
9% would be excluded for purposes of computation of retirement benefits and there would be no 
exemptions to this rule.  Currently, a plan member of the School Employees Retirement System applying 
for retirement benefits is subject to have his/her salary examined by NPERS (the Retirement Agency) for 
the 60 months leading up to the anticipated date of retirement.  Under the current rule, any amount of 
annual salary increase exceeding 7% would be excluded for purposes of computation of retirement benefits 
unless at least one of three exemptions applies.

NCSA:  Proposes to eliminate the 7% Rule under the School Employees Plan along with the three 
exemptions under the rule and, in exchange, to raise the cap for purposes of calculating benefits to 9% with 
no exemptions. Under the existing rule, a plan member applying for retirement benefits is subject to have 
his/her salary examined by NPERS (the Retirement Agency) for the 60 months leading up to the declared 
date of retirement.  Any amount of annual salary exceeding 7% would be excluded for purposes of 
computation of retirement benefits unless at least one of three exemptions applies.  The three exemptions 
are:  A.  Substantial change of employment position or duties, B.  Result of collective bargaining 
agreement, or C.  District-wide permanent benefit-plan change.

Under LB 486, the existing 7% Rule would sunset on June 30, 2012, and, beginning July 1, 2012, a new 
l  ld l  f  id i  f l  i  h  i  f b fi   U d  h  d l   

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/08/11
at 12:10 p.m.
room 1525

Oppose

LB509 Nebraska Retirement 
Systems Committee

NE RETIREMENT 
SYSTEMS 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change provisions relating to retirement

NCSA:  Represents the technical cleanup bill for the NPERS.  One of the more significant changes 
proposed in LB 509 is a re-codification effort to place all cost-of-living (COLA) related provisions of each 
retirement plan into one section of law and to eliminate obsolete language.  The bill does not change or alter 
any existing COLA laws.  The bill neither increases nor diminishes any benefit for current or future retires.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/08/11
at 12:10 p.m.
room 1525

03/04/11 Support

LB531 Fulton Change permissible budget reserves for schools

Lowers MPS allowable reserve percentage from 20% to 15%.  Provides that any reduction in a school 
district’s budget made to comply with the budget limitation under the state aid formula must affect 
classroom expenses at a last resort.  The obvious intent behind the bill is to force school districts to utilize 
its reserves toward instructional staff and to place instructional staff as the priority for budget expenditures.  
NCSA Summary.

Education
02/01/11 at 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB537 Karpisek Change provisions relating to budget limitations and property tax levy limitations Revenue
02/04/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

162



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB544 Pahls

PAHLS PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions relating to civics education for students

Currently, state law provides that for grades below grade 6, one hour a week of school time should be 
devoted to “the duties of citizenship.”  This bill expands upon that by adding “including active 
participation in the improvement of a citizen's community, state, country, and world and the value and 
practice of civil discourse between opposing interests.”

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525
CANCELLED
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/03/11 Oppose

LB548 McCoy Change, transfer, and eliminate provisions relating to learning communities

Replaces the 18 generally elected voting members of learning community coordinating council with 9 
school board members from the districts in the learning community.  Selection of members: (a) one school 
board member would be appointed by the other school district members from each of the six learning 
community geographic districts (the elected member must live in the district) and (2) three at large school 
board members as appointed by all school board members within the learning community. Changes duties 
of the superintendent advisory committee.  Eliminates the achievement subcouncil and gives some of those 
previous duties to the superintendent advisory committee.  
Provides that the learning community coordinating council must approve a focus program, focus school, or 
pathway program before it is established by a learning community school districts.  Provides that learning 
community school districts may independently participate in one or more joint entities formed pursuant to 
the Interlocal Cooperation Act for the purpose of creating, implementing, and operating focus programs, 
focus schools, magnet schools, or pathway programs which shall not require the approval of the learning 
community coordinating council. Removes language designating a school district as the primary school 
district when the school districts collaborate on a focus program, focus school, or magnet school.  Provides 
that student selection and attendance for such focus programs, focus schools, magnet schools, and pathway 
programs, whether approved by the learning community coordinating council or created and operated 

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
03/03/11

Support

LB558 Nordquist

NORDQUIST 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change provisions relating to focus schools, focus programs, and magnet schools

Removes the “pursuant to the diversity plan developed
by the learning community coordinating council” language after the section that allows any members 
school district of a learning community to establish one or more focus programs, focus schools, or magnet 
schools.  Provides that if a focus school or focus program is part of a diversity plan of the learning 
community, it is eligible for an allowance.  Removes the designation of a primary school district when the 
school districts collaborate on a focus program, focus school, or magnet school.

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/10/11 Oppose

LB564 Fulton

FULTON 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change and eliminate provisions of the Industrial Relations Act and the State Employees Collective 
Bargaining Act

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Supprot

163



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB572 Price Limit transfers of students between learning community member school districts

Provides that if a learning community coordinating council creates an elementary learning center within a 
member school district, a student residing in such member school district is not eligible to transfer to 
another school district within the learning community.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB582 Haar Adopt the Student Expression Act

Provides that the right of students to free expression in all public schools in Nebraska shall not be abridged 
except as provided in the Student Expression Act.  Prohibits certain types of student expression including 
(1) obscene expressions, defamatory expressions, and expression that creates clear and present danger of 
unlawful acts or causes material and substantial disruption of the school or invasion of privacy.  Provides 
that the Legislature encourages school districts to adopt and publish policies on student expression 
following the guidelines of the Student Expression Act.

Education
03/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB591 Gloor Provide for a syndromic surveillance program and change immunization information exchange provisions

The Department of Health and Human Services shall develop a syndromic surveillance program that 
respects patient privacy and benefits from advances in both electronic health records and electronic health 
information exchange. The syndromic surveillance program shall include the monitoring, detection, and 
investigation of public health threats. The department shall adopt standards for syndromic surveillance 
reporting by hospitals. The department may require syndromic surveillance reporting by other health care 
facilities or any person issued a credential by the department.  The department shall a schedule for the 
implementation of full electronic reporting of all syndromic surveillance data elements. Confidentiality and 
immunity provisions apply to syndromic surveillance data reports.  It is the intent of immunization 
information between professionals, facilities, and  departments health care professionals, health care 
facilities, health  care services, schools, postsecondary educational institutions, licensed child care facilities, 
electronic health-record systems,  public health departments, health departments of other states, Indian  
health services, and tribes for the purpose of protecting the public  health by facilitating age-appropriate 
immunizations which will  minimize the risk of outbreak of childhood vaccine-preventable diseases.  The 
Department of Health and Human Services shall establish an immunization information system for the 
purpose of providing a central data base.

Health and 
Human Services
02/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

03/10/11 Oppose

LB615 Krist Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

See LB 636

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB618 Harr Authorize possession of firearms as prescribed for school or school event security

Provides that peace officers or other duly authorized law enforcement officers, when contracted to or 
otherwise requested to by a school district, may possess a firearm on school property.

Judiciary
02/16/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

03/08/11 Support

164



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB619 Larson Remove school districts, learning communities, and educational service units from the Industrial Relations 
Act

See LB 397, LB 664, LR29CA

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB633 Adams Change provisions relating to certain tax levies and certain bonds of school districts and authorize 
refunding bonds

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB634 Adams Change provisions relating to the tax levy authority of school districts relating to certain bonds

Allows a school district to exceed the maximum levy of 5.2¢ (to cover environmental hazard abetment and 
other projects) in any year in which: (1) the taxable valuation of the district is lower than the taxable 
valuation in the year in which the district last issued bonds pursuant to this section and (2) the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ is insufficient to meet the combined annual principal and interest obligations for all bonds 
issued under section 79-10,110.  The amount generated from a district's levy in excess of the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ upon the taxable valuation of the district may not exceed the combined annual principal and 
interest obligations for such bonds minus the amount generated by levying the maximum levy of 5.2¢ upon 
the taxable valuation of the district and minus any federal payments or subsidies associated with such 
bonds.

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB635 Adams Change the Quality Education Accountability Act

Requires the State Board of Education to establish an index to be used to measure the performance of 
individual public schools beginning with school year 2012-13.  Schools who do not meet the minimum 
level of performance established by the board would be designated as a “priority school” and an 
intervention team would be established for each priority school.  The intervention team would develop 
annual progress plans.  Provides for possible loss of accreditation after 5 years of being a priority school.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

Support

LB636 Adams Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

Permits the disclosure of certain student records to learning community employees, but without identifiable 
personal information.  Requires the learning community coordinating council to annually report data and 
information provided by member school districts under certain sections to the Education Committee.  
Changes requirements for the learning community school districts to provide copies of applications 
submitted to attend a focus school, focus program, magnet school, or school building not in the student’s 
attendance area and to mark whether that application was accepted or rejected. 

See LB 615

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

165



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB664 Nelson

NELSON 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Repeal the Industrial Relations Act and the State Employees Collective Bargaining Act and prohibit public 
collective bargaining and work stoppage

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

LB680 Heidemann Adopt the School Employees Cash Balance Retirement Act

Creates a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees, similar to the current plan offered 
to state employees, often referred to as a hybrid of both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.  
Does not impact the retirement system for existing school employees.   Under the State Employees 
Retirement Plan, employees contribute about 4.8% of salary and the employer (the state) contributes about 
7.5% of salary to an employee account.  The employee cannot control investment of the account, but is 
guaranteed an annual return of at least 5% a year.  The account can receive a higher return, depending on 
investment earnings.  At retirement, the employee may buy an annuity, or withdraw the balance in a lump 
sum or in installments.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the session adjourns.  

NCSA:  Would create a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees.  It is important to 
note this legislation would not change the retirement system for existing school employees.  The bill 
proposes a retirement system similar to the current plan offered to state employees, often referred to as a 
hybrid system (both a defined benefit and defined contribution plan).  Senator Heidemann offered the bill 
knowing that it would require significant study.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the 
session adjourns.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
03/01/11
at 12:10 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

166


	Board Packet March 21, 2011
	Student Fees Public Hearing Script
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes March 7, 2011
	E.2. Special Board Meeting Minutes March 14, 2011
	Financials
	E.5. Committee Minutes March 14, 2011
	G.1. Approval of Policy 10001 - Site-Based Planning and Management - Mini-Magnets
	Policy 10001
	H.2. Approval of Rule 10001.1 - Site-Based Planning and Management - Mini-Magnet Development Process
	Rule 10001.1
	H.3. Delete Rule 10001.2 - Site-Based Planning and Management - Center Development - A Plan for Low Enrollment Buildings
	Rule 10001.2
	H.4. Reaffirm Policy 5800 - Pupil Services - District Computers, Software, and Data Files
	Policy 5800
	H.5. Approval of Rule 5800.1 - Pupil Services - district Computers - Software, and Data Files: Compliance with Applicable Law and Use of District Computers
	Rule 5800.1
	H.6. Reaffirm Rule 5800.2 - Pupil Services - District Computers, Software, and Data Files: right of Access
	Rule 5800.2
	H.7. Reaffirm Rule 5800.3 - Pupil Services - District Computers, Software, and Data Files: Access to Student Records
	Rule 5800.3
	H.8. & H.9. Reaffirm Policy 5470 and Rule 5470.1
	H. 8. Reaffirm Policy 5470 - Pupil Services - Police Questioning and Apprehension
	H.9. Reaffirm Rule 5470.1 - Pupil Services - Procedures for Law Enforcement Questioning and Apprehension of Students
	H.10. Approval of Rule 6750.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Student Fees
	Rule 6750.1
	Policy 6750
	H.11. Approval of Project Lead The Way Agreement
	H.12. Award Contract for Cather Re-Roofing Project
	H.13. Award Contract for Millard South High School Re-Roofing Project
	H.14. Award Contract for Disney Soffit and Fascia Replacement Project
	H.15. Award Contract for Black Elk Flooring Project
	H.16. Award Contract for Norris Flooring Project
	H.17. Award Contract for Ezra Millard Fabric Removal Project
	H.18. Award Contract for Millard North High School Roofing Project
	H.19. Administrator for Hire - Cody
	H.19. Administrator for Hire - Harvey Oaks
	H.20. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignations and New Hires
	Resignations
	New Hires
	I.1. Legislative Update



